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APPEARANCES: 

MICHAEL P. GOGGIN, BellSouth 

Telecommunications, Inc., c/o Nancy Sims, 150 South 

Monroe Street, Suite 400, Tallahassee, Florida 

32301, appearing on behalf of BellSouth 

Telecommunications, Inc. 

KIMBERLY D. WHEELER, Morrison & Foerster, 

2000 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW, Washington DC 

20006-1888, Florida 32779, appearing on behalf of 

NeuStar, Inc., North American Numbering Plan 

Administrator. 

FLOYD SELF, Caparello & Self, P.A, Post Office Box 

1876, Tallahassee, Florida 32302-1876, appearing on behalf 

of AT&T Communications of the Southern States, Inc. and 

AT&T Wireless Services, Inc., and MCI WorldCom, Inc., and 

its operating subsidiaries. 

DONNA CANZANO McNULTY, The Atrium, Suite 105, 325 

John Knox Road, Tallahassee, Florida 32303, appearing on 

behalf of MCI WorldCom, Inc. 

KENNETH A. HOFFMAN, Rutledge, Ecenia, 

Purnell & Hoffman, P. O. Box 551, 215 South Monroe 

Street, Suite 420, Tallahassee, Florida 32302-0551, 

appearing on behalf of Omnipoint Communications. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 




1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

4 

APPEARANCES CONTINUED: 

CAROLE BARICE, Fowler Barice Law Firm, 28 West 

Central Boulevard, Orlando, Florida 32801, appearing on 

behalf of the City of Deltona. 

CHARLES REHWINKEL, Post Office Box 2214, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32316-2214, appearing on behalf 

of Sprint-Florida, Incorporated, Sprint PCS, and 

Sprint Communications Company Limited Partnership. 

FRANK B. GUMMEY, III, Assistant County Attorney, 

County of Volusia, 123 W. Indiana Avenue, DeLand, Florida 

32720, appearing on behalf of Volusia County. 

J. JEFFRY WAHLEN, Ausley & McMullen, Post Office 

Box 391, Tallahassee, Florida 32302, appearing on behalf 

of ALLTEL Florida, Inc. and Northeast Florida Telephone 

Company. 

MARSHA RULE, AT&T Communications of the 

Southern States, 101 North Monroe Street, Suite 700, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32301, appearing on behalf of 

AT&T Communications of the Southern States and AT&T 

Wireless Services, Inc. 
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APPEARANCES CONTINUED: 

BETH KEATING, C. LEE FORDHAM and TIM 

VACCARO, Florida Public Service Commission, Division 

of Legal Services, 2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard, 

Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0870, appearing on behalf 

of the Commission Staff. 
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PRO C E E DIN G S 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: We'll go ahead and have 

the notice read, then. 

MS. KEATING: By notice issued May 6th, 2000, 

this time and place have been set for a hearing in Docket 

Numbers 990455, 990456, 990457, and 990517. 

The purpose is as set forth in the notice. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. We will take 

appearances. 

MR. GOGGIN: This is Michael Goggin, appearing 

on behalf of BellSouth Telecommunications, Incorporated. 

MR. HOFFMAN: 11m Kenneth A. Hoffman, appearing 

on behalf of Omnipoint Communications. 

MR. WAHLEN: Jeff Wahlen of the Ausley and 

McMullen law firm on behalf of ALLTEL Florida, Inc. and 

Northeast Florida Telephone Company. 

MR. SELF: Floyd Self of the Messer, Caparello 

and Self law firm appearing on behalf of AT&T 

Communications of the Southern States and AT&T Wireless 

Services, Inc., as well as MCI WorldCom, Inc. and its 

operating subsidiaries. 

I would also like to enter appearances for Donna 

Canzano McNulty on behalf of MCI WorldCom, and Marsha Rule 

on behalf of AT&T. 

MS. BARICE: Carol Barice appearing on behalf of 
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the City of Deltona, Florida. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: I'm sorry, could you spell 

your last name for me, please. 

MS. BARICE: It's like bar ice. B, as in boy, 

A-R-I-C-E. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. And that is the 

City of Deltona? 

MS. BARICE: Yes, Your Honor. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

Okay. We can take appearances by telephone at 

this point for those individuals. 

MR. GUMMEY: Frank Gummey for the County of 

Volusia. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Thank you. 

MR. REHWINKEL: Charles Rehwinkel on behalf of 

Sprint Florida, Incorporated and Sprint Communications 

Company, a limited partnership, and Sprint PCS. 

MS. WHEELER: Kimberly Wheeler with the law 

offices of Morrison & Foerster on behalf of NeuStar, Inc. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Thank you. 

MS. KEATING: And Beth Keating, Lee Fordham, Tim 

Vaccaro, and Donna Clemons appearing on behalf of 

Commission staff. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Ms. Keating, 

preliminary matters? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. KEATING: There are no preliminary motions 

that need to be addressed at this time, so staff 

recommends that we proceed with entering the testimony and 

exhibits and the stipulated exhibits into the record. I 

would suggest that we take up the stipulated staff 

exhibits first. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. Let me, as a 

preliminary, make sure that none of the parties have any 

preliminary matters. 

Any preliminary matters by any of the parties? 

I take it there are none. 

MR. GOGGIN: Commissioner, this is Michael 

Goggin with BellSouth. We have two matters, two items 

that we would like to add to the official recognition 

list. But we can get to that when it is time to stipulate 

that in, if that is more appropriate. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. When that comes up, 

just bring that to my attention and we will address it at 

that time. 

MR. GOGGIN: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Ms. Keating, then 

let's go through the process of identification and 

admitting items into the record. 

MS. KEATING: The first stipulated exhibit is 

the official recognition list for this proceeding. It is 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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composed of Commission orders, FCC orders, the Federal 

Telecom Act, and several other documents that we believe 

are appropriate for recognition. 

I would like to point out that staff has 

provided copies of all the documents listed under "other" 

for ease of reference by the parties. And I would ask 

that this exhibit be marked for the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. It will be 

identified as Exhibit Number 1. And before we go further, 

Mr. Goggin, you want to make an amendment to that? 

MR. GOGGIN: Yes, Commissioner. 

We propose that two items be added; one is FCC 

Order Number 96-333, and the other is the United States 

Supreme Court decision in the case of AT&T versus Iowa 

Utilities Board, which was issued on January 25, 1999. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Any objection to the 

inclusion of those two items? 

MS. KEATING: None from staff. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Hearing no objection, show 

then that Exhibit 1 is amended as described by Mr. Goggin. 

MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 1. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Just for clarification, 

Exhibit 1 is just the official recognition list, correct? 

MS. KEATING: That is correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Now, this large 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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stack of paper which the official recognition list was 

lying on top of, what is this? 

MS. KEATING: Those are the documents that are 

listed in the section "other" on the list. We went on and 

printed out copies of all of those because they are not as 

easily obtained. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. So that was just 

being provided for ease of the parties to have access to 

that, but we are not actually inserting that information 

in the record. It is just the list that is being inserted 

into record, is that correct? 

MS. KEATING: That's correct. The list is what 

is going to be a part of the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. And the list itself 

is just what we are officially recognizing, it doesn't 

mean that each of these documents is actually part of our 

record in this proceeding, is that correct? 

MS. KEATING: They are a part of that list. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: They are on the list, 

correct? 

MS. KEATING: Right, they are on the list. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: They are on the list, I 

understand that. We are just officially these are the 

type documents that we officially recognize, is that 

correct? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. KEATING: Correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. And we are not 

actually inserting all of this into the record, per se? 

MS. KEATING: I don't believe that the court 

reporter actually has to add those to the transcript, but 

they are a part of the record. But we only provided 

copies for ease of reference by the parties, and by the 

Commissioners. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Let's take a look 

at what those other documents are, just for my 

understanding. 

For example, Item I, comparative cost 

statistics. Now, you are using that as to become part of 

the record? That is evidence in this record by us 

adopting Exhibit 1 into the record? 

MS. KEATING: That is correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Do the parties agree to 

that and recognize that that is happening? No objection 

to that? And that is the same for all of these other 

documents? 

MS. KEATING: We have made the parties aware of 

this list ahead of time and have received no objections 

thus far. 

MR. GOGGIN: Commissioner, this is Michael 

Goggin with BellSouth. I guess our understanding is that 
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these documents are authorities upon which parties may 

rely in citation in their briefs. But we don't view them 

as evidence in the same way that testimony and exhibits 

would be considered evidence. 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: That is my understanding 

of it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: See, that was my 

understanding, as well. I think you just described what 

my concern is, and I was wanting to clarify that. 

Is that staff's understanding, as well? 

MS. KEATING: That is correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. That is more 

clear, then. Okay. Then, without objection, and with 

that understanding, then, show Exhibit 1 admitted for that 

purpose. 

(Exhibit 1 marked for identification and 

admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Other exhibits? 

MS. KEATING: The second composite exhibit is 

Stip2. It is all the correspondence filed to date in the 

docket files for each of these dockets. Staff asks that 

this be marked for the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It will be identified as 

Exhibit 2. 

MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 2. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Without objection? 

Hearing no objection, show then Exhibit 2 is admitted. 

(Exhibit 2 marked for ident ication and 

admitted into the record.) 

MS. KEATING: The third composite exhibit is 

Stip 3. It contains all the responses to staff's 

discovery requests filed in these dockets. And I want to 

point out that the confidential responses have not been 

copied. I would ask that this exhibit be marked for the 

record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It will be identified as 

Exhibit Number 3. 

MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 3. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And without objection? 

Hearing no objection, then, show Exhibit Number 3 

admitted. 

(Exhibit 3 marked for identification and 

admitted into the record.) 

MS. KEATING: The fourth composite exhibit is 

Stip 4. It is a printout of the December 1999 COCUS 

results and distribution of NPA NXXs by company. Staff 

asks that this be marked for the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It will be identified as 

Exhibit Number 4. 

MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 4. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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COMMISSIONER DEASON: Is there any objection to 

Exhibit 4? Hearing no objection, show then Exhibit Number 

4 is admitted. 

(Exhibit 4 marked for identification and 

admitted into the record.) 

MS. KEATING: The fifth composite exhibit is a 

printout regarding number pooling resources. Staff asks 

that it be marked as Hearing Exhibit 5. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It will be so identified. 

MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 5. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Any objection to Exhibit 5 

being admitted? Hearing no objection, show then Exhibit 5 

is admitted. 

(Exhibit 5 marked for identification and entered 

into the record.) 

MS. KEATING: The sixth composite exhibit is 

Stip 6, and is the deposition transcript and late-filed 

deposition exhibits of Tom Foley. I want to point out 

that the affidavit used in telephone depositions is not 

included in the packet, but it is my understanding that it 

is in the mail and will be included in this exhibit as 

soon as it arrives. I would ask that this be marked for 

the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It will be identified as 

Exhibit Number 6. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 6. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Any objection? Hearing no 

objection, show then Exhibit 6 is admitted. 

(Exhibit 6 marked for identification and 

admitted into the record.) 

MS. KEATING: The seventh exhibit is Stip 7. It 

includes the deposition transcript and late-filed 

deposition exhibits of Lennie Fulwood. Staff asks that 

this be marked for the record. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It will be identified as 

Exhibit Number 7. 

MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 7. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Any objection to Exhibit 

7? Hearing no objection, show then Exhibit 7 is admitted. 

(Exhibit 7 marked for identification and 

admitted into the record.) 

MS. KEATING: And finally the last exhibit is 

Stip 8. It is the deposition transcript of Stan Greer. 

Staff asks that this be marked as Hearing Exhibit 8. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: It will be so identified. 

MS. KEATING: And staff moves Exhibit 8. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Any objection to Exhibit 

8? Hearing no objection, show then Exhibit Number 8 is 

admitted. 

(Exhibit 8 marked for identification and 
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admitted into the record.) 

COMMISSIONER JACOBS: I have something, I think 

that was in this package, called initial planning 

document. It is a spreadsheet. Was that to be attached 

to one of the depositions? 

MS. KEATING: I believe that is part of 

Mr. Foley's. I believe that is one of Mr. Foley's 

deposition exhibits. 

MS. WHEELER: This is Kimberly Wheeler. We 

supplied those IPD spreadsheets to staff as late-filed 

exhibits which were requested during the deposition. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: So that is part of the 

deposition transcript and the exhibit for Mr. Foley, 

correct? 

MS. KEATING: (Indicating yes.) 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. And that is 

Exhibit 6. 

MS. KEATING: And I do want to just point out 

for the parties that we are still in the process of 

finishing up copying Hearing Exhibit 1. It was quite 

large, as you can see, Commissioners, and the print shop 

should be finished by the time we are finished here today. 

I think now ~e can move to the witnesses' 

testimony and the witnesses' exhibits. 

MR. SELF: Commissioner Deason, if I could just 
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ask one point of clarification regarding Exhibit 3, which 

includes the responses to the discovery. The actual 

exhibit that is in the record includes the confidential, 

any confidential responses. It is just that the copy you 

distributed did not include confidential? 

MS. KEATING: That is staff's intent. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And that is the 

understanding of the parties, I take it. Hearing no 

objection to that, that is understood, and that is part of 

the exhibit. 

MR. SELF: Thank you. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. We can proceed. Do 

you want to proceed, then, with the insertion of the 

witnesses' testimony? 

MS. KEATING: Yes, sir. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. 

MS. KEATING: I believe the first witness is Mr. 

Foley. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Okay. Now, we have both 

direct and rebuttal testimony for a number of witnesses, 

correct? 

MS. KEATING: That's correct. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Now, are we going to 

insert both direct and rebuttal at one time, is that your 

intent, or are we going to do that separately? 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MS. KEATING: I think that would be fine. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Well, with that 

understanding -- Mr. Wahlen. 

MR. WAHLEN: I don't have a strong preference 

one way or the other. I was just going to suggest that we 

all agree that the testimony be inserted into the record 

and presented in the transcript in the order that it was 

in in the prehearing order, and not go through 

individually doing it. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: And not go step-by-step? 

Okay. Will that suffice for purposes of the record? It 

is just understood that all prefiled testimony will be 

inserted into the record in the order in which it is 

presented in the prehearing order. Is there a problem 

with that; that can be done? 

MS. KEATING: Not at all. 

MR. GOGGIN: Commissioner, if I might make one 

suggestion. As an exception to the order in which it 

appears in the prehearing order, that we put the exhibits 

in that correspond to each witness together with that 

witness' testimony in the order in which the testimony 

appears in the prehearing order. 

COMMISSIONER DEASON: Very well. I think at 

this point we are going to try to actually insert the 

testimony. And then we will go through the process of 
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identifying the accompanying exhibits to that prefiled 

testimony, and give it numbers. And then go through the 

process of having those identified exhibits, also, 

admitted into the record. 

But for purposes of the prefiled testimony 

itself, the suggestion is that we have that prefiled 

testimony inserted into the record consistent with the 

order as it is presented on Pages 6, 7 and 8 of the 

prehearing order. And without objection? Hearing no 

objection, show all prefiled testimony is inserted into 

the record according to that order. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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1 BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

2 DIRECT TESTIMONY 

3 OF 

4 THOMAS C. FOLEY 

DOCKETS 990455-TL, 990456-TL, 990457-TL, and 990517-TL 

6 

7 Q. Please state your name and business address. 

8 

9 A. My name is Thomas C. Foley. My business address is: 

11 Lockheed Martin IMS - NANPA 

12 1120 Vermont Avenue, N.W. Suite 550 

13 Washington, DC 20005 

14 

Q. Please detail your educational background and professional experience in the 

16 telecommunications industry. 

17 

18 A. I hold a Bachelor of Science Degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of Nebraska 

19 - Lincoln and a Masters of Business Administration form Roosevelt University, Chicago. I 

also have a Masters Certificate in Project Management from George Washington University. 

21 I have attended numerous telecommunications industry schools and forums on engineering, 

22 management, and project management. 

24 

I have been employed in the telecommunications industry for more than twenty-six years. 

26 

1 

--.~--.-------------



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

---------------

22 


Currently I am employed as an NPA Relief Planner for Lockheed Martin IMS. Lockheed 

2 Martin IMS performs the role of the neutral third party administrator of the North American 

3 Numbering Plan (NANP). I have held this position since August 9, 1999. 

4 

Prior to joining NANP Administration (NANPA) I was employed by Sprint Corporation and its 

6 predecessor companies. 

7 

8 I have held positions in Engineering, Strategic Market Planning, Technology Planning, and 

9 Operations. I have held such positions as Manager of Budgets and Forecasting, District 

Manager, and Project Manager. In my most recent previous position with Sprint, I managed 

11 large, complex interdepartmental projects such as NPA relief activities. I have project 

12 managed these activities for NPA relief since 1988, including the implementation of 

13 interchangeable NPAlNXX codes. 

14 

I am a member of the faculty at the University of Phoenix where I teach mathematics, 

16 statistics, project management, and general management courses at both the undergraduate 

17 and graduate level. 

18 

19 Q. Have you ever appeared as a witness before the Florida Public Service Commission before? 

21 A. Yes. Before I accepted my current position at Lockheed Martin IMS, I appeared as a witness 

22 on behalf of Sprint in several proceedings before the Florida Public Service Commission 

24 ("Commission"), most recently the 407/321 NPA and 941/863 NPA relief proceedings. 

26 Q. What is the purpose of your testimony? 

2 
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2 A. This testimony is offered pursuant to the NPA Relief Planning & Notification Guidelines (INC 

3 97-0406-016 Aug. 30, 1999), the "Guidelines" and to explain NANPA's role in the relief 

4 process for the 305/786, 561, 954, and 904 NPAs and to these proceedings before the 

Commission. 

6 

7 Q. Please describe NANPA's role in these proceedings. 

8 

9 A. As I indicated before, NANPA is the neutral third party administrator of the NANP. NANPA 

convened a meeting of the industry for each of these NPAs to review the projected exhaust 

11 situation of NXX codes and to evaluate possible alternative means of providing relief. 

12 NANPA prepared and distributed an Initial Planning Document ("IPO") with proposed 

13 methods of relief prior to each meeting. The details of each meeting will be addressed later 

14 in my testimony. 

16 At the meetings, industry participants reached consensus on relief alternatives to recommend 

17 to the Commission. NANPA and the industry use the Alliance for Telecommunications 

18 Industry Solutions ("ATIS") consensus process described in the Guidelines. 

19 

Following the meetings, NANPA filed with the Commission a petition on behalf of the 

21 telecommunications industry requesting approval of the relief plans recommended by the 

22 industry participants. These petitions for the 305/786, 561/954 and 904 NPAs were filed with 

24 the Commission on July 6, 1999; August 11, 1999; and August 16, 1999, respectively. The 

petitions, which contain the (PO and meeting minutes for each proceeding, are attached 

26 hereto as Exhibits TCF#1, TCF#2 and TCF#3. 
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2 Q. Who comprises the telecommunications industry to which you refer? 

3 

4 A. The telecommunications industry consists of those current and prospective 

telecommunications carriers operating in, or considering operations in, the State of Florida at 

6 the time of the relief planning meetings. 

7 


8 Q. Addressing only the 305/786 NPA relief efforts, when was the industry meeting held and who 


9 was in attendance? 


11 A. The telecommunications industry meeting was held June 23, 1999 in Key West, Florida. The 


12 list of invitees and attendees is included in Exhibit TCF#1. 


13 


14 Q. Were you in attendance at this meeting? 


16 A. Yes, I was. At the time I was representing my former employer, Sprint. 


17 


18 Q. Please identify the relief alternatives considered at the June 23, 1999 305/786 NPA relief 


19 meeting. 


21 A. There were four alternatives presented for consideration in the IPD and one additional 


22 alternative was offered for consideration at the meeting by a member of the industry. 


24 


Alternative #1 proposed an expanded overlay, from the existing 305/786-overlay area (Miami­

26 Dade) to the Keys Area. 
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2 Alternative #2 was similar to Alternative #1 but added an additional NPA code for the overlaid 

3 area to expand the life of the relief plan. 

4 

Alternatives #3 and #4 were geographic splits with an expanded overlay. 

6 

7 Alternative #5 was a geographic split, giving the Keys Area a separate NPA code and 

8 returning the 305 NPA NXX codes for assignment in the Miami-Dade area. 

9 

Q. How did the industry address the relief alternatives at the meeting? 

11 

12 A. The industry, by consensus, eliminated Alternative #2. which proposed an all services 

13 expanded overlay and the imposition of future additional overlay to cover the entire expanded 

14 area. This plan was eliminated because it required two separate forms of relief to be 

implemented with the second phase beginning approximately 3 years after the 

16 implementation of the first phase. The Alternative would commit the industry to a plan of 

17 action that could be rendered inappropriate by future events such as a Commission order on 

18 code conservation or the implementation of a nationwide conservation plan. 

19 

Alternative #3, a geographic split, was eliminated by consensus for several reasons. First. 

21 existing customers would be required to change their numbers. Second, seven-digit dialing 

22 would be preserved only in areas where it presently exists, typically in the adjacent Keys. 

24 Third, this alternative would take a longer period of time to implement in comparison to 

Alternative #1. Fourth, the permiSSive dialing period required for implementing a split 

26 
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1 exceeds the estimated exhaust period. Fifth, business customers having to change their 

2 numbers would incur additional expenses and possible loss of business. 

3 

4 Alternative #4 was also excluded by consensus because it required existing customers to 

change their numbers. In addition, Alternative #4 requires that 297 NXX codes in the new 

6 NPA be reserved for Monroe County. The industry was concerned that the reservation of 

7 297 NXX codes may not support the estimated 12-year life of the new NPA. The industry 

8 also had concern over the amount of time necessary to implement this plan, given the low 

9 number of codes currently available in the Keys. 

11 Alternative #5 was unanimously eliminated because, as a single geographic split, the 

12 allocated NXX codes would be used inefficiently. Also, the lives of the resulting area codes 

13 were not balanced. 

14 

Alternative #1 was accepted by consensus as the plan to recommend to the Commission as 

16 the preferred means of relieffor the 305/786 NPAs. 

17 

18 Q. How long will the recommended alternative provide relief to the 305/786 NPAs? 

19 

A. The life of Alternative #1 is projected to last 3.4 years to 6.8 years. The spread in years 

21 assumes that an unknown means of NXX code conservation may extend the life of the NPA. 

22 

24 Q. Without the proposed relief, how long will the existing arrangement last for the Keys portion of 

the 305 NPA? 

26 

6 




5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

27 

1 A. With the current NXX code rationing established by the industry, the 305 NPA will exhaust 

2 during the first quarter of 2001. The rationing plan allows for the assignment of only one NXX 

3 code per month. 

4 

Q. Turning now to the relief activities for the 561 and 954 NPAs, when was the industry meeting 

6 held and who was in attendance? 

7 

8 A. The industry meeting was held May 19,1999 in Singer Island, Florida. Relief plans for both the 

9 954 and 561 NPAs were considered at this single meeting. The list of invitees and attendees 

to this combined meeting is included in Exhibit TCF#2. 

11 

12 Q. Were you in attendance at this meeting? 

13 

14 A. Yes, I was. At the time, I was employed by Sprint. 

16 Q. Please identify the relief alternatives considered at the May 19, 1999 relief meeting for the 

17 561 NPA. 

18 

19 A. There were three alternatives presented for consideration in the original 561 NPA IPO 

distributed to the industry. At the meeting, members of the industry offered for consideration 

21 three additional relief alternatives. 

22 

24 Alternative #1 proposed a distributed overlay covering the same geographic area as the 

current 561 NPA. 

26 
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1 Alternative #2, the West Palm Beach Plan, was a geographic split with the proposed 

2 boundary northeast of the West Palm Beach rate center. 

3 

4 Alternative #3, referred to as the Tri-Beach Area Plan, was a geographic split that included 

West Palm Beach, Delray Beach, and Boynton Beach rate centers in an area separate from 

6 the rest of the 561 NPA. 

7 

8 Alternative #4, proposed by a member of the industry, was a geographic split with the split 

9 boundary line north of the Jupiter and West Palm Beach rate centers. 

11 Alternative #5, proposed by a member of the industry, was a concentrated growth overlay 

12 with the overlay portion covering the same area to the south of the split line detailed in 

13 Alternative #4. 

14 

Alternative #6, proposed by a member of the industry at the meeting, was a statewide 

16 wireless only overlay. 

17 

18 Q. How did the industry address the relief alternatives at the meeting? 

19 

A. The industry discussed the alternatives and reached consensus to eliminate Alternative #4 

21 due to the unbalanced lives of the resulting NPAs (3.1 years and 24.6 years). Alternatives #2 

22 and #3 were eliminated by consensus because the alternatives divided communities of 

24 interest. Alternative #5, the concentrated growth overlay, was eliminated for several reasons: 

(1) the unique dialing patterns necessary for concentrated growth overlays often cause 

26 customer confusion; (2) special monitoring methods, not currently available, are required to 
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1 predict the exhaust of the preexisting area code outside of the concentrated overlay area; 

2 and (3) the overlay area NPA must be identified as needing relief and a relief plan 

3 implemented much earlier than with other forms of relief because a sufficient number of CO 

4 Codes must be preserved to serve the area outside of the concentrated overlay area. 

6 Alternative #6. the statewide wireless only overlay. was eliminated by consensus because a 

7 service specific overlay violates FCC rules. 

8 

9 Alternative #1, the distributed overlay, was accepted by consensus as the alternative to 

recommend to the Commission as the preferred means of relief for the 561 NPA.. 

11 

12 Q. How long will the recommended alternative provide relief to the 561 NPA. 

13 

14 A. The life of Alternative #1. the distributed overlay, is projected to last 8.8 years to 17.6 years. 

The spread in years assumes that an unknown means of NXX code conservation may extend 

16 the life of the NPA. 

17 

18 Q. Without the proposed relief, how long will the existing arrangement last for the 561 NPA? 

19 

A. With the current NXX code rationing established by the industry. the 561 NPA will exhaust 

21 during the third quarter of 2002. The rationing plan allows for the assignment of six NXX 

22 codes per month. 

24 

Q. Turning now to 954 NPA relief activities. please identify the relief alternatives considered at 

26 the May 19, 1999 relief meeting. 
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2 A. There were two alternatives presented for consideration in the original 954 NPA IPO 

3 distributed to the industry. Industry members did not offer additional alternatives for 

4 consideration. 

6 Alternative #1 proposed a distributed overlay covering the same geographic area as the 

7 current 954 NPA. 

8 

9 Alternative #2 was a geographic split with the proposed boundary west of the Coral Springs 

rate center and north of the Hollywood rate center. The proposed split line bisected the Fort 

11 Lauderdale rate center. 

12 

13 Q. How did the industry address the relief alternatives at the relief meeting? 

14 

A. The industry discussed the alternatives and reached consensus to eliminate Alternative #2 

16 because the split boundary line divided a rate center and would therefore create confusing 

17 dialing patterns for end users. Also, the alternative would require some customers to have to 

18 change their seven-digit telephone numbers. The industry reached consensus to 

19 recommend Alternative #1, the distributed overlay, as the preferred means of relief for the 

954 NPA. 

21 

22 Q. How long will the recommended alternative provide relief to the 954 NPA? 

24 
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1 A. The life of Alternative #1, the distributed overlay, is projected to last 9.5 years to 19.0 years. 

2 The spread in years assumes that an unknown means of NXX code conservation may extend 

3 the life of the NPA. 

4 

Q. Without the proposed relief, how long will the existing arrangement last for the 954 NPA? 

6 

7 A. With the current NXX code rationing established by the industry, the 954 NPA will exhaust 

8 during the second quarter of 2002. The rationing plan allows for the assignment of six NXX 

9 codes per month. 

11 Q. Moving along to the relief activities for the 904 NPA, when was the industry meeting held and 

12 who was in attendance? 

13 

14 A. The industry meeting was held June 30, 1999 in Jacksonville, Florida. The list of invitees and 

attendees to this meeting is included in Exhibit TCF#3. 

16 


17 Q. Did you attend this meeting? 


18 


19 A. Yes. I was employed by Sprint at the time. 


21 Q. Please identify the relief alternatives considered at the June 30, 1999 relief meeting for the 


22 904 NPA. 


24 


26 
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1 A. There were five alternatives presented for consideration in the original 904 NPA IPD 

2 distributed to the industry. At the meeting, members of the industry offered one additional 

3 alternative to be considered for the 904 NPA. 

4 

Alternative #1 proposed a distributed overlay covering the same geographic area as the 

6 current 904 NPA. 

7 

8 Alternative #2 proposed a concentrated growth overlay with the ten northeastern rate centers 

9 (covering Nassau, Duval, and St. Johns Counties) included in the overlay portion. 

11 Alternative #3 proposed a geographic split. The proposed split boundary would run along 

12 rate center boundaries and included Nassau, Duval, and St. Johns Counties. 

13 

14 Alternative #4 also proposed a geographic split with the split boundary along rate center 

boundaries to the south of Duval County and to the west of Clay County. 

16 

17 Alternative #5 proposed a geographic split with one area including the rate centers in Duval 

18 and Nassau Counties. 

19 

Alternative #6, proposed by a member of the industry at the meeting, was a geographic split 

21 including rate centers in Nassau, Duval, Clay, and St. Johns Counties in one of the areas. 

22 

24 Q. How did the industry address the relief alternatives at the meeting? 

26 
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1 A. The industry discussed the Alternatives and reached consensus to eliminate all of the 

2 geographic split alternatives - Alternatives #3, #4, #5 and #6. Those four alternatives were 

3 eliminated because they divide large local calling areas and would require customers to 

4 change their telephone numbers. Additionally, Alternatives #3, #4 and #6 resulted in NPAs 

with unbalanced lives. Lastly. Alternative #6 would create a noncontiguous geographic area. 

6 

7 The industry eliminated from consideration Alternative #2. a concentrated growth overlay. for 

8 several reasons: 1) the portion of the 904 NPA without the overlay would have a very short 

9 projected life; 2) no administrative tools have been developed to monitor the exhaust of 

concentrated growth overlays; 3) it would divide local calling areas; 4) customer confusion 

11 would result when the concentrated overlay is expanded to cover the remaining area; and 5) 

12 the projected life could be drastically reduced by NXX requests from new market entrants. 

13 Industry participants noted that past experience with concentrated growth overlays yielded 

14 unsatisfactory results. The industry reached consensus to recommend Alternative #1, the 

distributed overlay, as the preferred means of relief for the 904 NPA. 

16 

17 Q. How long will the recommended alternative provide relief to the 904 NPA? 

18 

19 A. The life of Alternative #1, the distributed overlay, is projected to last 10.1 years to 20.3 years. 

The spread in years assumes that an unknown means of NXX code conservation may extend 

21 the life of the NPA. 

22 

24 Q. Without the proposed relief. how long will the existing arrangement last for the 904 NPA? 

26 
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A. With the current NXX code rationing established by the industry, the 904 NPA will exhaust 

2 during the fourth quarter of 2001. The rationing plan allows for the assignment of six NXX 

3 codes per month. 

4 

Q. At the three above-mentioned relief planning meetings, did the industry reach consensus on 

6 a recommended implementation schedule? 

7 

8 A. The industry did discuss implementation schedules and, for the 904, the 561, and the 954 

9 NPAs. the industry agreed upon an implementation interval schedule rather than a fixed 

schedule. The industry-recommended interval schedule for an overlay calls for NANPA to 

11 assign the relief NPA within 14 days of the release of a final order by the Commission. 

12 Transitional dialing would begin 90 days later and mandatory dialing would begin 180 days 

13 after the commencement of the transitional dialing period. The industry participants stated 

14 that they would like to reserve the opportunity to revise the above-recommended intervals 

depending upon the final relief method or methods ordered by the Commission. 

16 

17 For the 305/786 NPA, the industry requested an expedited decision due to the extreme 

18 shortage of available NXX codes. 

19 

Q. What is the industry's recommended dialing plan for each of the recommended NPA relief 

21 alternatives? 

22 

24 A. Because the industry recommended the distributed overlay alternative in each case above, 

the industry recommended a 10-digit local dialing plan both within and across NPA 

26 
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boundaries of the existing NPAs and the new relief NPAs. This is consistent with FCC rules 

2 and industry Guidelines. 

3 


4 Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 


A. Yes, it does. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO.: 990517-TL 

Filed: November I~, 1999 

In Re: 	Request for review of proposed numbering 

plan relief for the 904 area code 

I 

November 5. 1999 


DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 


COMMISSIONER WAYNE GARDNER 


Q. 	 Please state your name, business name, address and title. 

A. 	 Wayne Gardner. I am City Commissioner for the City of Deltona. The 

address of the Deltona City Hall address is 800 Deltona Blvd., Deltona, 

FL 32728. I am currently listed as a party of interest in relationship to 

this Docket No. 

Q. 	 Please describe educational background and business experience. 

A. 	 I am an elected official for the City of Deltona with a Associate of Arts 

degree, and a background in business and business administration, 

owing my own business for over fifteen (15) years. I have been involved 

with the telephone area code question as it relates to the City of Deltona 

for ten (10) years or more. 

Q. 	 What is the purpose of your testimony? 

A. 	 The purpose of my testimony is to relate to the Public Service 
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Commission the position of the City of Deltona and myself personally, 

and how I feel that it will effect my constituents. 

Q. Should the Commission approve the industry's consensus relief Plan? 

A. Not having a complete copy of the industry's consensus relief Plan, I am 

commenting only on my understanding of that Plan. It is my 

understanding that they are requesting an overlay of the 904 area code 

area in Volusia County. It is my opinion, and the City's opinion that an 

additional area code in Volusia County, a County that already has two (2) 

area codes, and a portion of it which is in an overlay status in the 

407/321 area code, would be unacceptable and not in the public interest. 

An additional overlay would bring as many as four (4) area codes within 

our County, and with the knowledge and understanding that the 321/407 

overlay's lifetime is only 3-4 years, this could mean that Volusia County, 

in five years, could ultimately have five (5) area codes. For a County as 

small as Volusia County, with a population base as small as that of 

Volusia County, this would constitute more area codes than any major 

metropolitan population area, that I know of, anywhere in the United 

States. 

Q. What number conservation measure(s), if any, should be implemented? 

A. It is our belief that to help conserve numbers, the Public Service 

Commission needs to direct that smaller blocks of numbers be allowed 

to be reserved than the present ten thousand phone numbers that 

companies and businesses presently reserve at this time. It is also our 

feeling that numbers should be released in numeric order, and not be 

allowed to skip large blocks of numbers in the issuing and releasing of 
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38 phone numbers. 

Q. 	 What should be the dialing pattern for Volusia County? 

A. 	 It is our feeling that there should be extended community calling 

throughout Volusia County, even across the Orlando lata-line which is at 

the northern-most region of the City of Deltona. Presently, Deltona is 

split on an area code line, and then north of that area code line is a lata 

line. We feel that because of the large number of residents that work 

inside of the Daytona lata, and live inside of the Orlando lata, all of which 

is inside of one City, the City of Deltona, and within Vol usia County, that 

measures need to be taken so that people can call across this lata line, 

and call anywhere within the County border, at either a flat .25 cent rate, 

or at a local rate. It is also our feeling that the local calling that 

southwest Volusia presently has, crossing the county line into Sanford 

and Lake Mary, needs to be continued. It is also our feeling that 

southeastern Deltona, which presently has Sanford exchange phone 

numbers, should continue with their local calling area, which allows them 

to call as far south as Orlando. We would like to see their local calling 

area expanded to include northern Deltona, which is in the 904 area 

code, and still within the Orlando lata. These areas border each other 

and, in some instances, are across the street from each other. I do not 

feel that it is correct that one area of the City must pay long distance 

phone charges to call across the street. It has been the opinion of the 

City that we would like to see all of Volusia County united into a single 
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area code to make it simpler for calling patterns, and to make it simpler 

for people to recognize area code numbers within Vol usia County, 

instead of having, ultimately in five years, as many as five area codes in 

Volusia County. 

39 

Q. Please explain any rate structure changes that may be appropriate. 

A. The City feels that a rate structure change is needed between calling of 

northern Deltona, which is in the 904 area code, yet still within the 

Orlando lata- that a rate structure change needs to be made for them to 

be able to make extended community calling to Daytona Beach, and from 

Daytona Beach back to both northern Deltona, southern Deltona, and 

eastern Deltona. 

Q. What is the appropriate implementation Schedules? 

A. The City of Deltona would like to see an implementation schedule where 

any and all changes within the areas of 407, 904 and the rest of Volusia 

County are implemented all at the same time, instead of having a portion 

of Deltona brought into the 904, and then that area code changed to a 

new area code. We feel that this would cause undue distress for our 

constituents and businesses if their area code changes twice. So, we 

would like to see the implementation of any changes to be done at one 

single time in the future. The exact date of such implementation, we feel, 

needs to be left up to the industry, since they are the ones who need to 
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40 actually do the technical changes to be able to make these things work. 

Q. 	 Do you have anything further to add regarding this matter? 

A. 	 The City of Deltona, and myself personally, feel that a change within 

Vol usia County to a single area code is not only good for the residents 

of Deltona to make calling within our City, and from other areas into our 

City, much simpler and more convenient, but it is also in the best interest 

of the tourism industry throughout Vol usia County_ Presently Volusia 

County has a emerging echo tourism within the west Volusia area, and 

of course we have a beach tourism area, and racing tourism area in the 

Daytona Beach area. We feel that the overlay of an area code, and 

ultimately in five years having as may as five area codes in Vol usia 

County, will have an adverse economic impact upon all of the residents 

in Volusia County, as tourism would suffer caused by people not being 

able to know what numbers to call to make reservations or to be able to 

learn about what tourist-type activities are available throughout the 

County. This decrease in tourism would have a "trickle-down" effect 

upon any and all other industries within Vol usia County. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO.: 990S17-TL 

FILED: April 20, 2000 

In Re: Request for review of proposed numbering 

plan relief for the 904 area code 

/ 

April 3. 2000 


REBUTTAL TESTIMONY OF 


COMMISSIONER WAYNE GARDNER 


After reading written testimony of the industry/carrier, my rebuttal is as follows: 


Q. What should be done regarding number conservation. 

A. In my previous testimony I suggested release or allowing number 

reservation to be changed from 10,000 to 1,000. I also believe that it would be 

acceptable for the industry to be allowed to reserve up to a thirty (30) day 

inventory of numbers. This would allow larger carriers a larger allocation and 

smaller carriers an allocation truer to their need. PSC staff could see if the thirty 

(30) day period needs to be longer or shorter after a trial period of time. With 

today's technology, there is no reason to believe that this type of procedure 

could not better control inventory of unused numbers. 

Furthermore, I concur with the industry testimony that local number 

portability is needed and should be required, I would also recommend cell 

phone and pager number portability between carriers. As rates for these 

services decline because of competition, there is a reluctance on the part of 

consumers to change company/carrier to take advantage of these lower rates 

- ---.....------------ ­
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because of not wanting to change phone numbers. This requirement of cell 

phone and pager number portability would not only conserve numbers, but 

would also increase competition and lower the costs to consumers. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO.: 990517·TL 

Filed: April 20, 2000 

In Re: 	Request for review of proposed numbering 

plan relief for the 904 area code 

I 

April 20. 2000 


COUNTY OF VOLUSIA 


DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 


ROBERT M. WEISS 


o. 	 Please state your name, organization, address, and title. 

A. 	 My name is Robert M. Weiss. I am the Communications Director for 

Volusia County government. My business address is 123 West 

Indiana Avenue, Room #205, Deland, Florida 32720. The telephone 

number is (904) 736·5750. 

o. 	 Please describe your educations background and professional 

experience. 

A. 	 I hold a Bachelor of Science degree in Engineering from Northeastern 

University in Boston, Massachusetts, and a Master of Business 
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Administration degree in Management Information Systems from 

American University in Washington, D.C. 

I had over 26 years experience managing military communications 

prior to retiring as a Colonel, U.S. Army, in 1989. Included in that 

experience is a one (1) year tour of executive training with industry 

with NYNEX and AT&T in engineering and management. Upon 

retirement, I came to my current position which I have now held for 

ten (10) years. 

Q. 	 What is the purpose of your testimony? 

A. 	 The purpose of my testimony is to address the position of Volusia 

County government, representing the citizenry of the County, 

concerning PSC docket 990517-TL, Request for Review of Proposed 

Number Plan Relief for the 904 Area code. 

My testimony will be structured to respond to the issues identified for 

this docket, but I must initially provide some background information 

concerning calling patterns, calling rates, and area code divisions 

within Vol usia County. 
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Volusia County has been arbitrarily and inconveniently split for 

telephone calling purposes since the AT&T modified final judgment 

(MFJ) which established rules and calling areas subsequent to the 

breakup of the Bell system in the 1984 time frame. The local access 

and transport area (LATA) boundary dividing the Daytona Beach 

calling area of LATA from the Orlando LATA goes right through 

Southwest Volusia County without any respect for, or consideration 

of, political boundaries. Since the time of this division, Volusia 

County's southwest sector has increased in population dramatically. 

Particularly of note is the incorporation of the second largest city in 

the County, as well as one of the fastest growing areas of the state, 

in Deltona. The present situation, therefore, has over one-third of the 

citizens of the County separated from the other two-thirds by a LATA 

boundary. (See exhibit to be supplied) 

There are additional complicating, negative factors concerning 

telephone service in the area. At present, the telephone subscribers 

in the Southwest Vol usia County/Deltona area are served by two (2) 

local exchange companies (LECs), BeliSouth Telecommunications, 

Inc. and Sprint-Florida, Inc. The region is also unique in that an area 

code or numbering plan area (NPA) boundary divides the area but in 

a different way and place from the LATA boundary. The subscribers 

in the Sprint exchange of Orange City are in 904 NPA. The BeliSouth 
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exchanges are in the 407 area. The City of Deltona is served by two 

(2) LECs, three (3) exchanges and two (2) area codes, soon to be 

overlaid with a third. In most, but not all instances nationally, the NPA 

and LATA boundaries follow the same line. This is not the case in 

Southwest Volusia County/Deltona area. 

In summary, in this county we have neighbors within the same county 

and often the same city having to make long distance calls literally 

across the street and having to dial 11 digits to communicate with one 

another. The Florida Public Service Commission has been 

understanding in the past and supportive of efforts to correct these 

serious drawbacks to County telephone service. The PSC has been 

thwarted in its ability to correct this situation to a large extent by the 

lack of options conceming interLA T A calling. 

This area code issue represents a real opportunity to provide some 

position impetus toward solving the poor situation existing in this 

portion of Florida. 

Q. 	 Should the Commission approve the industry's consensus relief plan? 

A. 	 No. Area code overlays only compound an already confusing 

situation. Geographic and political identification of telephone 
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1 subscribers makes significantly more sense to users, even if it 

2 involves some subscribers experience number changing. 

3 

4 This County feels strongly that it must be given a single area code 

5 (NPA) throughout to provide some relief. We understand that the 

6 county alone may not have enough subscribers to warrant our own 

7 exclusive NPA but may have to share with neighboring counties. That 

8 situation is acceptable, although our own exclusive NPA would be 

9 preferred. We also understand that the current 904 and 407 NPAs 

10 would probably be given to other areas if geographic distribution of 

11 NPA is approved for this portion of Florida. 

12 

13 Q. What number conservation measure(s), if any, should be 

14 implemented? 

15 

16 A. Smallest block distribution that produces longest life for NPA prior to 

17 exhaustion. 

18 

19 Q. What should be the dialing pattern for the following type of calls?: 

20 A) Local 
21 B) Toll 

22 C) EAS (costs included in local rate) 

23 0) ECS ($.25 per call residential) 

24 

25 

26 
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1 A. A) 7-digit 

2 B) 11-digit 

3 C) 7-digit 

4 D) 7-digit 

5 

6 

7 
8 Q. What is(are) the appropriate implementation schedule(s}? 

9 

10 A. As soon as possible commensurate with sufficient time to handle the 

11 consumer-related problems resulting from changing of numbers, with 

12 adequate led time and intercept. 

13 

14 Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 

15 

16 A. Yes. 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 


26 
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Sprint-Florida, Incorporated 

Docket Nos. 9904SS-Tl.9904S6-Tl,9904S7-Tl.990S17-Tl 
November 1 7. 1 999 

1 BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

2 DIRECT TESTIMONY 

3 OF 

4 SCOTT LUDWIKOWSKI, SPRINT PCS 

5 

6 

7 Q. state your name, job tit1e, and the company with whom 

8 you are emp1oyed. 

9 

10 A. My name is Scott Ludwikowski. I am a Senior Network 

11 Engineer employed by Sprint PCS at its national 

12 headquarters in Kansas City. My resume is appended as 

13 Exhibit. A. 

14 

1 5 Q. Describe Sprint PCS? 

16 

17 A. Sprint PCS provides commercial mobile radic /servlce 

18 ("CMRS") . Beginning in 1995, sprint PCS acquired new 

19 Personal Communications Services ( .. PCS") radio licenses 

20 (for which it paid the Federal Treasury approximately $3 

21 billion) to provide CMRS in all 50 states, Puerto Rico 

22 and the U. S. Virgin Is lands. AI though it commenced 

23 service only three years ago, Sprint PeS already serves 

24 nearly five million customers and its state-of-the-art, 

25 CDMA, all-digital network covers the majority of the 
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nation I S metropolitan areas including more than 4,000 

cities and communities across the country. During each 

of the past four quarters, Sprint PCS has acquired more 

new customers than any other wireless carrier in the 

country including much la~ger incumbent cellular 

carriers. 

Q. 	 Brief:ly describe your job f:unations at Sprint peS. 

A. 	 I am responsible for monitoring the usage of numbering 

resources by Sprint PCS and its customers, for the 

processes Sprint PCS uses in assigning telephone numbers 

to its customers, and for planning for and obtaining 

additional numbering resources. I also represent Sprint 

PCS in the Industry Numbering committee ("INC") and in 

the Cellular Telecommunications Industry Association 

("CTIA") Number Advisory Group, which I currently co­

chair. These organizations address national numbering 

policy issues and develop industry number guidelines, 

with INC developing, among other things, the industry's 

consensus pooli.ng administrative guidelines. In 

addi.tion, I represent Sprint PCS in state NPA relief 

planning, implementation, and conservation task forces 

and work groups. 

2 
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1 Q. Wi~~ Sprint PCS be impacted by the decision the 

2 Commission make. in this proceeding? 

3 A. Yes. Sprint PCS' federal licenses authorize it to 

4 provide CMRS throughout the State of Florida. Sprint 

5 PCS currently provides CMRS in all of the area codes -

6 or Number Planning Areas ("NPAs") - that are the subject 

7 of this proceeding and as a result, uses numbering 

8 resources in these NPAs. Sprint PCS will therefore be 

9 directly impacted by the Commission's decisions adopting 

10 the area code relief and new number conservation 

1 1 measures. 

12 

13 Issue 1a: Should the Commission approve the 

14 industry's consensus relief plans for the 305/786, 

1 5 561, 954, and 904 area codes? 

16 

17 Q. Does Sprint PCS support the industry's consensus re~ief 

18 p~ans for the 305/786, 561, 954, and 904 area codes? 

19 

20 A. Yes. Sprint PCS therefore recommends that the 

21 commission promptly approve the industry's plans. 

22 

23 Issue 1b: If the Commission does not approve the 

24 industry's consensus relief plan, what alternative 

3 
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1 plans should be approved for the 305/786, 561, 954, 

2 and 904 area codes? 

3 

4 Q. What relief plans should the Commission adopt if it does 

5 not implement the industry's consensus plans? 

6 A. Because it favors approval of the industry plans, Sprint 

7 PCS will defer addressing this "what if" question. If 

8 necessary, Sprint PCS will address this issue in 

9 rebuttal and at that time will have the benefit of the 

10 views of any persons supporting adoption of an 

1 1 alternative plan. 

12 

13 Issue 2a: What number conservation measure(s), if 

14 any, should be implemented in the 305/786, 561, 954, 

1 5 and 904 area codes? 

16 

17 Q. What conservation measures should the Conmission 

18 implement in the five area codes that are the subject of 

19 this proceeding? 

20 

21 A. Sprint PCS :recommends that the Commission consider 

22 adopting a package of five conservation measures, and it 

23 below discusses each of the five components of its 

24 proposed conservation plan. However, these measures are 

25 so important that Sprint PCS further recommends that, 

4 
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1 with the exception of pooling which requires a staggered 

2 implementation, the measures be adopted where lawful and 

3 applied throughout the state of Florida, not simply in 

4 those area codes that are the subject of this 

proceeding. The adoption of conservation measures now 

6 in area codes not currently in jeopardy has the 

7 potential to extend the date that these non-jeopardy 

8 NPAs become jeopardy NPAs. 

9 A. Mandatory 1,OOOs-Block Management Guidelines. 

1 1 Q. What are l,OOOs-block management guidelines? 

12 

13 A. Thousands-block management guidelines involve an 

14 internal process that carriers can utilize in assigning 

available numbers to their customers. These guidelines 

16 do not address the separate question of how carriers 

17 obtain additional numbering resources whether NXX 

18 codes from the North American Numbering Plan 

19 Administrator (,. NANPA" ) or 1,OOOs blocks from the 

pooling administrator. 

21 

22 Historically, carriers had the flexibility to assign to 

23 customers numbers within their NXX codes without 

24 constraint (e. g., NXX-1000, NXX-9050, NXX-3031). This 

past practice did not pose any problems so long as 

5 
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1 numbers were only assigned in blocks of 10,000, but this 

2 practice must change if numbers are instead assigned in 

3 blocks of 1,000. 

4 

There is much interest in number pooling as discussed in 

6 subsection B below. However, pooling can be effective 

7 only if there are l,OOOs blocks - whether uncontaminated 

8 blocks or blocks with less than 10% contamination - that 

9 can be contributed to the pool. The more l,OOOs blocks 

in the pool, the more effective pooling will be in 

1 1 delaying area code exhaust. 

12 

13 with l,OOOs-block management guidelines, carriers manage 

14 their numbers (assign numbers to customers) in blocks of 

1,000 rather than in blocks of 10,000. When a carrier 

16 begins to manage its numbers in blocks of 1, ODD, it 

17 separates contaminated blocks (those with numbers 

18 assigned) from uncontaminated blocks. The carrier sets 

19 aside the "cIE:lan" or uncontaminated blocks and assigns 

numbers to customers only from contaminated blocks. 

21 (Important I y , the carrier need not assign numbers 

22 sequentially within each block.) The carrier cannot 

23 access one of the "clean" blocks until its inventory of 

24 unassigned numbers in its contaminated blocks falls 

below projected demand for numbers over a specified 

6 
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1 period of time. (Industry guidelines specify a nine­

2 month period.) 

3 

4 An example may help explain how this process works. 

S Assume a carrier has been assigned one NXX code in a 

6 rate center (e.g., 999) and that it has already assigned 

7 numbers from three of the 10 thousands blocks (e.g., 

8 999-2000-2999; 999-4000-4999; and 999-7000-7999). In 

9 industry par1,ance, these three 1,000s blocks are 

10 contaminated, and the other seven thousands blocks are 

1 1 uncontaminated. with 1,000s-block management rules in 

12 force, a carrier may initially assign numbers to 

13 customers only within the three contaminated blocks. 

14 

1 S To continue this example, assume this carrier is growing 

16 at an average rate of 100 customers per week and that on 

17 December 1, it had assigned to customers 1,400 of the 

18 3,000 available numbers. This carrier's reserve, or 

19 inventory, of available numbers would be 1,600 - enough 

20 to meet demand for 16 weeks (or four months). Industry 

21 guidelines prc)vide that a carrier may maintain an 

22 inventory of available numbers necessary to meet demand 

23 for the next nine months - for this carrier, a total of 

24 3, 600 numbers. Under these guidelines, this carrier 

2S would be entitled to open two of the ~cleaif blocks it 

7 
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1 earlier set aside and begin assigning numbers out of 

2 these two newly opened blocks. The carrier could not 

3 open another of its clean blocks until its inventory of 

4 available numbers falls below that needed to maintain a 

5 nine-month inventory. 

6 

7 Q. What are the benefits of adopting l,OOOs-bl.ock 

8 management rul.es at this time? 

9 

10 A. Thousands-block management guidelines will minimize the 

11 number of 1000s blocks that are contaminated, so more 

12 blocks can later be contributed to the pool once pooling 

13 begins. 

14 Q. What are the costs of adopting l,OOOs-bl.ock management 

1 5 rul.es at this time? 

16 

17 A. There are costs, and for some carriers, considerable 

18 costs, in managing numbers in blocks of 1, 000 rather 

19 than in blocks of 10,000. A carrier may have to modify 

20 a variety of service ordering and operational support 

21 systems (or use a manual process which invites problems 

22 like assigning the same number to two different 

23 customers) . 

24 

8 
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1 However, and this is important to emphasize, carriers 

2 that participate in pooling must necessarily manage 

3 their numbers in blocks of 1,000. There would appear to 

4 be no significant additional cost to a carrier by 

S accelerating the date that carriers must begin managing 

6 their numbers in blocks of 1,000 (e. g., beginning one 

7 year before pooling rather than immediately before 

8 pooling commences). However, by requiring carriers to 

9 implement l,OOOs-block management rules now rather than 

10 later, the Commission can maximize the number of blocks 

11 that will eventually be contributed to the pool, thereby 

12 maximizing the benefits of pooling and as a result, 

13 delay area code relief as long as possible for NPAs not 

14 already in jeopardy. 

lS Q. Did not the commission approve 1, 000s-b1ock management 

16 assignment guide1ines in Order No. PCS-99-1393-S-TP 

17 (Ju1y 20, 1999)? 

18 

19 A. Yes, but what the Commission approved in July was a 

20 voluntary stipulation involving some (but not all) 

21 Florida carriers - although the signatory carriers hold 

22 most of the N:KX codes in Florida. In approving this 

23 stipulation, the Commission expressed '" concern" that the 

24 "'lack of participation by some code holders would reduce 

2S the effectiveness of the proposed stipulation." The 

9 
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1 Commission nonetheless approved the stipulation because 

2 on balance, it "'will provide sufficient interim 

3 assistance in advance of state or federal action." 

4 

5 Q. Should the Commission now require all carriers that will 

6 be participating in pooling to utilize the same 1,000­

7 block management guidelines? 

8 

9 A. Yes. Requiring all carriers that will be participating 

10 in pooling to follow I, ODDs-block management guidelines 

11 will maximize the number of 1, ODDs blocks that can be 

12 contributed to the pool, thereby making pooling even 

13 more effective. 

14 

1 5 Q. Should carriers that will be unable to participate in 

16 pooling in the foreseeable future - sma1ler inc:rumbent 

17 LECs and wireless carriers - be required to utilize the 

18 same 1,000-block management guidelines? 

19 

20 A. Sprint PCS will only address wireless carriers, not 

21 incumbent LECs. As a general rule, the Commission 

22 should not impose new obligations on carriers unless the 

23 benefits of the regulation clearly exceed the costs 

24 resulting from the regulation. Legitimate arguments can 

25 be made that the costs of requiring wireless carriers to 

10 
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1 manage their ntmmers in blocks of 1,000 at this time far 

2 exceed the benefits because as discussed below, it 

3 will be three years before wireless carriers will be 

4 capable of participating in pooling, and thus three 

S years before they will begin donating 1,000s blocks to 

6 the ntmmer pool. 

7 

8 However, Sprint PCS already follows the 1,000s-block 

9 management guidelines that the conunission approved in 

10 July. In f:act, Sprint PCS was instrumental in 

11 developing the industry consensus proposal that was 

12 eventually submitted to the conunission. What is 

1 3 critically important is that all wireless carriers 

14 small, large, or in the case of Sprint PCS, medium-sized 

lS - be treated under the same set of rules (so regUlation 

16 does not distort competitive market forces). sprint PCS 

17 therefore asks the conunission to rule that all wireless 

18 carriers should be either (a) required to follow the 

19 same 1, OOOs-block management guidelines at this time or 

20 (b) excused temporarily from following these guidelines. 

21 If the conunission excuses wireless carriers from having 

22 to implement 1,000s-block management rules, it would be 

23 appropriate for the Commission to reconsider this matter 

24 in 18 months or so, as the wireless LNP/pooling deadline 

2S discussed below draws closer. One approach that the 

11 
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1 Commission could adopt would be to require all wireless 

2 carriers to begin utilizing l,OOOs-block internal 

3 management rules on the same date as pooling begins for 

4 LNP-capable carriers. 

5 

6 Q. Are 1, OOOs-b1ock management guide1ines sim.i1ar to 

7 sequantia1 numbering? 

8 

9 A. Yes. Both procedures have the same objective: prevent 

10 carriers from needlessly contaminating 1,000s blocks 

11 that could otherwise be contributed to the pool. With 

12 sequential numbering, carriers would be required to 

13 assign numbers one after the other (e.g., NXX-1001, NXX­

14 1002, NXX-1003). With 1, OOOs-block management rules, 

1 5 carriers have flexibility to assign numbers wi thin a 

16 l,OOOs block (e.g., NXX-1098, NXX-1055, NXX-1077). 

17 

18 Q. Why not adopt a sequentia1 numbering requirement rather 

19 than l,OOOs-b1ock management procedures? 

20 

21 A. It would be very difficult, if not impossible as a 

22 practical matter, for carriers to use sequential 

23 numbering. There are many reasons for this, but I will 

24 give only one example at this time: wireless pre-paid 

25 service where customers pay for a certain number of 

12 
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1 minutes before they use them. (Pre-paid services are 

2 especially att,ractive to persons with a poor credit 

3 rating or persons concerned that they will not use their 

4 mobile phone too often.) 

5 

6 Wireless carriers must have some means to distinguish 

7 pre-paid customers from ordinary, post-billed customers. 

8 Some wireless carriers obtain a separate NXX code for 

9 their pre-paid service (known as a special use code, 

10 discussed below). Sprint PCS believes this practice 

1 1 makes an inefficient use of NXX codes, and it 

12 accordingly reserves 1,800 numbers within one of its 

1 3 ordinary NXX codes for its prepaid service. Sprint PCS 

14 could not offer pre-paid services in Florida if it were 

1 5 required to eliminate the pre-paid subscribers' line 

16 range and instead assign numbers consecutively. Even 

17 assuming that Sprint PCS and its pre-paid service vendor 

18 could make the necessary technical changes to their 

19 respective systems while making these changes work 

20 with the treatment of pre-paid services in the dozens of 

21 other states where Sprint PCS provides service it 

22 would be costly and time consuming to make these 

23 changes. In all likelihood, this modification cost may 

24 render the continued offering of pre-paid service itself 

25 uneconomical and unprofitable. 

13 



62 

1 

2 It is critically important for the Commission to note 

3 that l,OOOs-block management rules have the same benefit 

4 as sequential numbering: maximize the number of l,OOOs 

S blocks that can be contributed to the pool. The 

6 difference is that l,OOOs-block management guidelines 

7 recognize the need of carriers to meet bona fide 

8 customer requests for particular numbers. For this 

9 reason, the Commission should adopt l,OOOs block 

10 management rules rather than sequential numbering rules. 

11 

12 Q. What l,OOOs-block management rules should the Commission 

13 adopt? 

14 

lS A. Sprint PCS recommends that the Commission adopt the 

16 guidelines that the Florida industry agreed to follow in 

17 the stipulation that the Commission approved in Order 

18 No. PCS-99-l393-S-TP (July 20, 1999). These guidelines 

19 are similar to those industry uses in other states. 

20 

21 Q. How can the Commission ensure that carriers are 

22 complying with l,OOOs-block management rules? 

23 

24 A. In the stipulation discussed above, the signatory 

2S carriers agreed to submit utilization data "'upon written 

14 
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1 request of the Conunission, not to exceed twice per 

2 year." Sprint PCS reconunends that the Conunission adopt 

3 the same reporting requirement in any new rules that it 

4 may adopt. 

5 B. Number Pooling 

6 

7 Q. What is number pooling? 

8 

9 A. Historically, carriers have received an entire NXX block 

10 containing 10,000 numbers when they needed 

1 1 The problem with thisadditional numbers in an area. 

12 approach is that carriers receive 10,000 numbers even 

13 though they may only need several hundred numbers to 

14 meet market demand in the foreseeable future. with 

1 5 1,000s-block number pooling, numbers are assigned to 

16 carriers in blocks of 1,000 rather than in blocks of 

17 10,000 thereby enabling the other 9,000 numbers 

18 associated with a particular NXX code to be assigned to 

19 other carriers. Potentially, up to 10 switches (and 

20 even, 10 different carriers) can share the same NXX code 

21 (as opposed to the past practice of each switch 

22 requiring a separate NXX code). 

23 

24 Q. Can all carrie.rs participate in number pooling? 

25 

15 
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1 A. No. To participate in pooling, a carrier must have the 

2 technical capability to support local number portability 

3 ("LNP" ) • In the past, carriers knew which switch to 

4 which they must route a call based on the NXX code in 

5 the dialed digits, because the NXX code uniquely 

6 identified one switch from another (and, thereby, one 

7 carrier from another) • Once pooling is implemented, 

8 switches are no longer uniquely identified by the NXX 

9 code in the dialed digits because several switches (and, 

10 in fact, several carriers) may be sharing the same NXX 

11 code. As a practical matter, for a carrier to 

12 participate in pooling it must be equipped with LNP 

13 capability. 

14 

1 5 Q. What carriers have LNP capability and can therefore 

16 participate in pooling and what carriers do not have LNP 

17 capability and cannot participate in pooling? 

18 

19 A. The FCC has required all landline local exchange 

20 carriers ("LECs"), whether incumbent or new entrant, to 

21 provide LNP in the 100 most populous Metropolitan 

22 statistical Areas ("MSAs" ) by December 31, 1998. In 

23 addition, LECs must provide LNP in other areas within 

24 six months of a request. See FCC Rule 52.23(b) and (c). 

16 
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1 Thus all landline LECs in at least the 100 most populous 

2 MSAs have the technology to support number pooling. 

3 

4 Conversely, carriers without LNP capability are 

S incapable of participating in pooling. These non-LNP­

6 capable carriers fall into two general categories: (a) 

7 LECs serving areas outside the 100 most populous MSAs, 

8 and (b) wireless carriers. 

9 

10 Q. Will wireless clarriers ever be required to implement LNP 

11 and therefore participate in pooling? 

12 

13 A. Yes, by November 24, 2002. FCC Rule 52 . 31 (a) provides 

14 in pertinent part: 

lS By November 24, 2002, all cellular, broadband PCS, 

16 and covered SMR providers must provide a long-term 

17 database method for number portability, in the MSAs 

18 identified in the appendix to this party in 

19 compliance with the performance criteria set forth in 

20 § 52.23(a} 

21 

22 Q. Why did the FCC peJ:mit wireless carriers to implement 

23 LNP at a date after the time land1ine carriers implement 

24 LNP? 

2S 

17 
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1 A. There are several reasons. Perhaps the most important 

2 is that implementation of LNP poses a special technical 

3 challenge for wireless carriers because they must 

4 separate the Mobile Directory Number ("MDN") from the 

5 Mobile Identification Number ("MIN"). In a wireless LNP 

6 environment, the MDN becomes portable (it moves with the 

7 customer), while the MIN remains non portable (it stays 

8 with the carrier). 

9 

10 In addition, t,o continue to support seamless, nationwide 

1 1 roaming, all wireless carriers in the country 

12 regardless of their location and size - must "flash cut" 

13 to LNP on the same date. Thus, wireless carriers cannot 

14 phase-in LNP as landline carriers have done (one MSA at 

1 5 a time). See generally CMRS LNP Forbearance Order, WT 

16 Docket No. 98-229, FCC 99-19, at ii 27-33 (Feb. 9, 

17 1999). 

18 

19 Q. Does the exclusion of wireless carriers from pooling 

20 requirements mean that wireless carriers are not 

21 affected by pooling? 

22 

23 A. No. Although wireless carriers cannot currently support 

24 LNP for their own customers, they must nonetheless 

25 modify their networks so calls made by their customers 

18 
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1 to persons assigned pooled numbers can be successfully 

2 routed. FCC Rule 52.31(b) provides: 

3 By December 31, 1998, all cellular, broadband PCS, 

4 and covered SMR providers must have the capability to 

5 obtain routing information, either by querying the 

6 appropriate database themselves or by making 

7 arrangements with other carriers that are capable of 

8 performing database queries, so that they can deliver 

9 calls from their networks to any party that has 

10 retained its number after switching from one 

1 1 telecommunications carrier to another. 

12 

13 What this means as a practical matter is that wireless 

14 carriers must prepare for pooling (e. g., ensure they 

1 5 have adequate database capacity, download pooled number 

16 information to their LNP/pooling databases) in much the 

17 same manner as landline LECs. 

18 

19 Moreover, long distance carriers, although under no 

20 obligation to provide LNP, must also modify their 

21 networks before pooling commences so their customers' 

22 calls can continue to be completed successfully. 

23 Consequently, implementation of pooling by LNP-capable 

24 carriers affects the entire industry. 

25 
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Q. 	 Does the exclusion of wireless carriers from pooling 

requiramants mean that wireless carriers will use 

numbers less efficiently than landline carriers? 

A. 	 Not really. As a whole, wireless carriers use numbers 

more efficiently than landline carriers. This was 

confirmed by a recent national study that Lockheed­

Martin prepared: 

Estimated NXX Code 

Industry Segment 

Wireless 

Incumbent LEC 

competitive LEC 

See Lockheed Martin 

Forecast and Trends, 

Nationwide Fill Rate 

42.8% 

35.6% 

5.7% 

CIS/NANPA, Number Utilization 

at 12 (Feb. 4, 1999). 

The biggest reason for this difference in fill rates 

among different industry segments is that unlike 

landline LEes I wireless carriers do not require a 

separate NXX code for each landline rate center. 

Nationwide, wireless carriers have obtained NXX codes in 

20 
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1 only 14% of all incumbent LEe rate centers. See NANPA, 

2 North American Numbering Plan Exhaust Study, at 3-4, 

3 Table 3-1 (April 22, 1999). While it makes sense to 

4 assign numbers in blocks of 1,000 to landline carriers 

5 that require ntmroers for each rate center, it makes much 

6 less sense to assign numbers in blocks of 1,000 to 

7 wireless carriers, when the numbers, though assigned to 

8 only one rate center, are used to provide service in 

9 five, ten, or E~ven more landline rate centers. 

10 

11 Pooling makes even less sense for rapidly growing 

12 carriers like Sprint pes that use numbers efficiently, 

13 especially in urban areas. (sprint pes acquired over 

14 two million new net customers during the first nine 

1 5 months of this year, and expects to acquire another 

16 million new customers before the end of the year.) 

17 sprint pes has numerous markets where it is growing at a 

18 rate of over 1,000 customers per week. Even in markets 

19 where Sprint pes is only gaining 500 new customers 

20 weekly, it mi:ikes little practical sense to require 

21 sprint pes to submit applications for an additional 

22 l,OOOs block every two weeks. 

23 

24 Q. What are the issues the Commission must address with 

25 regard to number pooling? 

21 
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1 

2 A. There are several important issues that the Commission 

3 must address. However, because these issues all relate 

4 to implementation, Sprint PCS discusses these issues in 

5 response to Issue 2b below. 

6 C. Fill Rates and Number Assignment Criteria 

7 

8 Q. The FCC has de1egated to the Commission the authority to 

9 estab1ish NXX code a11ocation standards, inc1uding fi11 

10 rates. Shou1d the Commission estab1ish minima1 fi11 

1 1 rates that carriers must meet as a condition to 

12 receiving additiona1 numbering resources? 

13 

14 A. Sprint PCS does not oppose establishment of fill rates -

1 5 so long as the Commission establishes a .. safety valve" 

16 procedure for carriers growing rapidly. However, there 

17 are problems with a fill rate procedure, and Sprint PCS 

18 believes that the Commission can adopt more rigorous and 

19 effective procedures. 

20 

21 Q. What are the problems with a fill rate procedure? 

22 

23 A. There are at least four problems. First, the FCC has 

24 ruled that fill rates cannot be used for the assignment 

25 of initial codes. See Florida Delegation Order at i 33. 

22 




7 1 


1 

2 Second, use of a fill rate by itself may result in the 

3 assignment of numbers to a carrier that does not need 

4 them. Assume a carrier has two NXX codes and that the 

5 commission adopts a fill rate requirement of 75%. This 

6 carrier would be eligible to apply for (and receive) a 

7 third code whEm 15,000 numbers are used - and 5,000 

8 number remain unused. However, if this carrier is only 

9 growing at a rate of five percent per year (or 750 

10 numbers per year), it would be eligible to receive a 

1 1 third code even though it would not need the code for 

12 over six years. 

1 3 

14 A third problem with a fill rate procedure is that it 

1 5 does not address the situation of rapidly growing 

16 carriers. Assume a carrier has one NXX code in a rate 

17 center and is growing at a rate of 1,000 customers (and 

18 numbers) a week. If a rigid 75% fill factor requirement 

19 were applied t:o this carrier, it would be unable to 

20 apply for an additional code until it had only 2,500 

21 numbers remaining - a supply of two and one-half weeks. 

22 However, the process to apply for, obtain, and activate 

23 a new code takes about 10 weeks (actually, 66 days), 

24 resulting in this carrier being without numbers for over 

25 seven weeks. As the FCC has noted, it is important that 
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state regulators "allow for some flexibility in 

establishing fill rates and applying them to carriers" 

to accommodate the unique situations that invariably 

arise. See Florida Delega tion Order at i 30. 

A fourth problem with a fill rate procedure is that it 

does 	 not address the assignment of so-called .. special 

use" 	 codes, a subject I discuss in more detail below. 

Q. 	 What, then, does Sprint PCS propose that the Commission 

adopt wi th respect to the criteria a carrier must meet 

to obtain additional numbering resources? 

A. 	 Sprint PCS recommends that the Commission adopt criteria 

applicable to each of the three different kinds of NXX 

codes: (l) initial codes, (2) growth codes, and (3) 

special use codes. Sprint PCS submits its specific 

proposals below. 

Q. 	 Before you describe Sprint PCS' specific assignment 

criteria proposal, identify the carriers that would be 

subject to these requirements. 

A. 	 The requirements Sprint PCS proposes would initially 

apply to all carriers. Once pooling begins in a given 

24 
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1 area, carriers participating in the pool (namely, LNP­

2 capable carriers) would no longer receive entire NXX 

3 codes but would instead receive 1,000s blocks from the 

4 pooling administrator. These 1,000s blocks would be 

S used to enter a new area (an initial l,OOOs block), to 

6 meet growing demand (a growth 1,000s block), or to 

7 provide a unique service (a special use 1,000s block). 

8 The industry pooling guidelines already address the 

9 criteria under which pooling carriers may apply for and 

10 receive a 1,000s block, and there is no need for 

11 Commission rules in this area. 

12 

13 However, the requirements Sprint PCS proposes below 

14 would still be used even after pooling begins for the 

1 S continued assignment of NXX codes. The requirements 

16 would apply to (a) non-LNP-capable carriers, (b) the 

17 pooling administrator, when it needs additional codes to 

18 replenish the pool, and (c) LNP-capable carriers in 

19 areas where pooling has not yet begun. Note that once 

20 pooling begins, the pooling administrator applies to 

21 NANPA for the assignment of an additional NXX code (to 

22 replenish the pool) in the same fashion as a non-LNP­

23 capable carriers applies to NANPA for the assignment of 

24 an NXX code. Thus, it remains imperative that the 

2S Commission adopt and implement timely area code relief 

25 
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1 after pooling begins because non-pooling carriers and 

2 pooling carriers (through their agent, the pooling 

3 administrator) will continue to require the assignment 

4 of additional NXX codes. 

5 1. Initial Code Requirements 

6 

7 Q. What proposa~ does Sprint recommend that the Commission 

8 adopt with regard to initiu codes - those codes that a 

9 carrier obtains for a new rate center. 

10 

1 1 A. Sprint recommends that the Commission adopt the 

12 following four-part test for the assignment of initial 

13 codes: 

14 

1 5 (a) The applicant must supply documentation by rate 

16 center of a bona fide request to provide service 

17 within nine months (four months if the NPA is in 

18 jeopardy) ; 

19 (b) The applicant must certify that it is authorized 

20 to provide service in the area requested, or has 

21 an application pending for such authorization 

22 and approval of the application is expected 

23 within nine months (four months if an NPA is in 

24 jeopardy) ; 

26 
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1 (c) The applicant must represent that it will be 

2 interconnected and have sufficient operable 

3 facilities in the rate center requested within 

4 nine months (four months if an NPA is in 

5 jeopardy); and 

6 

7 ( d) wi thin 60 days following the effective day of 

8 the assignment of the initial code, the 

9 applicant must certify that it has begun to use 

10 the code in the assignment of numbers and in the 

11 provision of service to customers. 

12 Q. What if a carrier does not begin using its code within 

13 the prescribed t~ period because of factors beyond its 

14 control? 

15 

16 A. Sprint PCS believes that it is essential that the 

17 Commission estclblish a waiver procedure to address this 

18 situation. (Sprint PCS further recommends that the 

19 Commission initially adopt a streamlined process for 

20 Staff to administratively handle requests for extension 

21 of time.) However, if a carrier fails to file a waiver 

22 or if the waiver is denied, the initial code should be 

23 reclaimed automatically. 

24 2. Growth Code Requirements 

27 
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1 

2 Q. What proposa1 does Sprint recommend that the C~ssion 

3 adopt with regard to growth codes - a code a carrier 

4 needs because its existing supp1y of numbers is nearing 

5 exhaustion. 

6 

7 A. Sprint recommends that the commission adopt the 

8 following five·-part test for the assigrunent of growth 

9 codes: 

10 (a) The applicant must supply documentation (a 

11 months-to'-exhaust form) demonstrating by rate 

12 center exhaust within nine months (four months 

13 if the NPA is in jeopardy); 

14 (b) The applicant must also supply six months of 

1 5 historic utilization data and six months 

16 forecast data to support the exhaust 

17 projections; 

18 (c) If the projected monthly demand is within 15% of 

19 the averc:lge historical monthly utilization, a 

20 code will be assigned. If the demand exceeds 

21 15% of the utilization, the carrier must explain 

22 the deviation prior to code assignment; 

23 (d) carriers must review all numbers in their 

24 reserved status to ensure that it only retains 
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1 those nwnbers for which the carrier has a 

2 legally enforceable written contract; and 

3 {e} The carrier must have reduced its aging period 

4 to 60 days {30 days if the NPA is in jeopardy}, 

5 unless a longer period is required by state 

6 regulation or a contractual agreement. 

7 Q. Is not this proposal similar to a fill rate procedure? 

8 

9 A. Yes, but Sprint pes' demonstrated needs based proposal 

10 is based on a more complete analysis and thus results in 

1 1 a more accurate prediction of need. A fill rate 

12 procedure only examines how many numbers a carrier has 

13 already assigned. In contrast, Sprint pes' proposal 

14 examines a carrier's historical growth and its future 

1 5 needs for additional numbers. Importantly, this future 

16 projection is based on historical data; a new code is 

17 automatically assigned only if projected demand is 

18 within 15% of past assignment data. While a carrier may 

19 seek an additional code if it claims that future demand 

20 will exceed past assignment activity, the carrier has 

21 the burden to justify this higher projected demand 

22 before an additional code will be assigned. Thus, 

23 Sprint pes' proposal avoids the problem of allocating 

24 additional numbers too soon to carriers growing slowly, 
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1 and further avoids the costs that would ensue if rapidly 

2 growing carriers were required to prepare and the 

3 Commission was required to review waivers of a fill 

4 factor. 

S 3. Special Use Code Requirements 

6 

7 Q. What is a specia~ use code? 

8 

9 A. Industry number assignment guidelines define a special 

10 use code as a. code "'necessary for distinct routing, 

11 rating, or billing purpose." One example of a special 

12 use code is the assignment of a separate NXX code for 

1 3 use only with pre-paid service customers. 

14 

1 S Q. What is the prob~em with specia~ use codes? 

16 

17 A. While there may be legitimate reasons for a carrier to 

18 seek assignment of a special use code, special use codes 

19 can also be used as a subterfuge to bypass the 

20 requirements placed on the assignment of initial and 

21 growth codes. What one carrier may deem "'necessary' may 

22 not be deemed "necessary' within the industry, or the 

23 Commission. For example, some wireless carriers 

24 apparently believe that assignment of a special use code 

2S for their pre-paid service is necessary. However, 
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1 Sprint PCS' practice concerning pre-paid services 

2 (discussed abo'\Te) demonstrates that the assignment of 

3 separate codes is not necessary. 

4 

5 Q. What, then, does Sprint PCS propose the comnission do 

6 with respect to, special use codes? 

7 

8 A. Sprint PCS recommends that the Commission review 

9 requests for special use codes with great care. At 

10 minimum, it should require the applicant to demonstrate 

11 that it cannot use its existing numbering resources for 

12 the desired purpose. While the industry assignment 

13 guidelines state that assignment of special use codes 

14 "should be minimized" when an NPA is in jeopardy, the 

1 5 Commission should consider prohibiting the assignment of 

16 all special use codes during the time an area code is in 

17 jeopardy. It is not apparent that a carrier should be 

18 precluded from. entering a market or meeting market 

19 demand for its services because another carrier has 

20 obtained a special use code to provide optional services 

21 - services that: can likely be supported by the carrier's 

22 current inventory of numbering resources. 

23 D. Reclamation 

24 
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1 Q. What procedures should the Commission adopt concerning 

2 the reclamation of NXX codes? 

3 A. If the Commission adopts the number assignment 

4 procedures above, reclamation should not be a major 

5 issue in the future because Sprint PCS' proposed 

6 assignment criteria will ensure that only those carriers 

7 truly in need of numbers receive them. The focus of the 

8 Commission's reclamation rules should be on the return 

9 of codes already assigned, but still not placed in 

10 service. 

1 1 

12 Sprint PCS recommends that the Commission require that 

13 any codes assigned prior to the effective date of its 

14 decision must be placed in service (i.e., have an active 

1 5 within four months of the Commission'scustomer) 

16 decision. If they are not placed in service by this 

17 time, the codes should be returned to NANPA so they can 

18 be made available to carriers truly needing codes. 

19 E. Rate Center Consolidation 

20 

21 Q. What should the Commission do with regard to rate center 

22 consolidation? 

23 

24 A. Where state law allows it, rate center consolidation is 

25 an especially effective conservation measure, 
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1 particularly if undertaken prior to, or concurrently 

2 with, implementing pooling. As the FCC has noted, 

3 "'[f]ewer, larger pools logically increase the 

4 effectiveness of thousands-block pooling." Florida 

5 Delegation Order at i 20. Rate center consolidation can 

6 result in significant efficiency gains, with or without 

7 pooling, especially in areas that have a large number of 

8 rate centers. 

9 

10 Rate center consolidation can be a challenging 

1 1 undertaking, particularly for a state as large as 

12 Florida. Sprint PCS therefore recommends that the 

13 Commission focus its initial resources on those rate 

14 centers that can be consolidated relatively easily and 

1 5 quickly - that is, rate centers that can be consolidated 

16 without impacting consumer rates (e.g., limit to 

17 multiple rate centers that fall within the same local 

18 calling area) or affecting revenues of providers. The 

19 Commission may wish to investigate such consolidations 

20 throughout the entire State of Florida, but sprint PCS 

21 recommends that it first focus on the jeopardy area 

22 codes that are the subject of this proceeding. I have 

23 no opinion on the legality of rate center consolidation 

24 under Florida law. 
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1 F. Lotteries and Their Future 

2 

3 Q. The FCC has delegated to the Commission certain 

4 authority over lotteri.es. What, if anything, should the 

S Commission do wi.th respect to lotteries? 

6 

7 A. Lotteries are part of the failed policies of the past, 

8 and they are no longer needed if the commission adopts 

9 the rigorous conservation measures Sprint PCS has 

10 recommended above. 

1 1 

12 It is important to emphasize at the outset that 

13 lotteries are not a conservation measure. Code 

14 rationing and lotteries do not improve in any way the 

lS efficiency in which carriers utilize numbers. They 

16 rather restrict artificially the assignment of numbering 

17 resources when the underlying demand for services (and, 

18 therefore, numbers) is not restricted. Moreover, 

19 lotteries do not guarantee that scarce numbering 

20 resources are assigned to carriers most in need. 

21 Rather, assignment of additional numbers is instead 

22 based on the "'luck of the draw" - and in the past, 

23 unscrupulous carriers could improve their luck simply by 

24 stuffing the lottery application box. 

2S 
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1 The conservation measures Sprint PCS recommends above 

2 and, in particular, the stringent assignment criteria 

3 for initial, growth, and special use codes - would 

4 ensure that only those carriers in need of numbers will 

5 receive them and will receive additional numbers only 

6 when they need them. In this environment, lotteries no 

7 longer have a legitimate role to play. 

8 Issue 2b: If conservation measures are to be 

9 implemented, when should they be implemented? 

10 

11 Q. When should conservation measures be implemented? 

12 

13 A. Rate center consolidation (if possible) and number 

14 pooling will take time to implement, and I discuss the 

1 5 unique issues with regard to pooling in detail below. 

16 However, Sprint PeS' other conservation proposals 

17 mandatory 1,000s-block management rules, rigorous 

18 assignment criteria for initial, growth, and special use 

19 codes, and reclamation - could be implemented relatively 

20 quickly, within 30 to 60 days of a Commission order. 

21 

22 Q. What are the unique, or special, implementation issues 

23 associated with number pooling? 

24 
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1 A. Number pooling is a complex undertaking. As discussed 

2 below, the Commission must address six different issues 

3 before pooling can commence in the state of Florida. 

4 While the Commission should focus its efforts on 

S addressing these six issues, it must not lose sight of 

6 the numerous other challenges pooling poses to industry. 

7 

8 The public switched telephone network has been designed 

9 under the assumption that a specific NXX code uniquely 

10 identifies one carrier. With pooling, this core design 

11 feature is no longer accurate (because multiple carriers 

12 will be sharing the same NXX code). Thus, while this 

13 Commission has important pooling issues it must address, 

14 carriers must begin working to modify virtually every 

1 S aspect of their network, including switch and database 

16 software, service ordering processing, number management 

17 practices, numerous operational support systems, and 

18 billing systems. sprint PCS does not mean to suggest 

19 that these changes cannot (or should not) be made. 

20 Sprint PCS only wishes to advise the Commission that the 

21 work carriers must undertake is considerable and will 

22 take time to complete. And, it is important to 

23 emphasize that there are severe consequences if pooling 

24 is implemented before this work is completed and 

2S thoroughly tested: calls to consumers or businesses 
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1 assigned pooled numbers may be blocked or misrouted. 

2 These facts suggest that when the Commission moves 

3 forward with pooling, it do so only with due regard for 

4 the need to maintain continued network reliability. 

5 A. Selection of a Pooling Administrator 

6 

7 Q. What is the first step the Commission should take to 

8 facilitate the introduction of pooling? 

9 

10 A. without question, the most important first step the 

1 1 Commission can take is to select the firm that will 

12 administer the pooling program. Much of the work 

13 industry needs to undertake to implement pooling cannot 

14 even begin until a pooling administrator is selected. 

1 5 Accordingly, the sooner the Commission selects a pooling 

16 administrator, the sooner industry can begin its 

17 important work to prepare for pooling. 

18 

19 Q. How should the Commission select a pooling 

20 administrator? 

21 

22 A. Ideally, the Commission would adopt an open bidding 

23 procedure, pel:haps directing the Florida industry to 

24 prepare a request for proposal. However, this approach 

25 entails some delay, and there is growing recognition 
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that 	Lockheed Martin - CIS, which has administered the 

Illinois pooling trial, has the necessary qualifications 

and experience. 

Q. 	 Are not there dangers in sel.ecting a pool.ing 

administrator before a pool.ing administration contract 

is executed? 

A. 	 Yes. For this reason Sprint PCS recommends that the 

commission invite Lockheed Martin - CIS to submit a bid 

proposal, after which carriers and other interested 

parties would be given an opportunity to submit their 

comments or concerns about the proposal. 

B. 	 Pooling Cost Recovery 

Q. 	 What other pooling issues must the Commission address? 

A. 	 While the FCC delegated the Commission certain authority 

to implement pooling, it .. further require [d] that the 

Florida Commission determine the method to recover the 

costs of the pooling trials." Florida Delegation Order 

at i 17. There are two discrete cost recovery questions 

that the commission must address. The first question is 

how the industry costs of pooling (e. g., the costs of 

the pooling administrator) should be shared among 

carriers in a competitively neutral manner. 
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1 

2 Q. What is the second poo1ing cost recovery issue? 

3 

4 A. Carriers must also have an opportunity to recover their 

pooling costs, which fall into two categories: (a) their 

6 pro rata share of industry's common costs, and (b) their 

7 own carrier-specific costs that they incur in preparing 

8 for pooling (e.g., costs in modifying network 

9 capabilities and in expanding network capacity). The 

Commission need not concern itself with the recovery of 

11 carrier-specific costs incurred by competitive carriers. 

12 As the FCC has noted with respect to LNP costs, 

1 3 .. [c] arriers not subject to rate regulation - such as 

14 competitive LECs, CMRS providers, and non-dominant IXCs 

may recover their carrier-specific costs directly 

16 related to providing number portability in any lawful 

17 manner consistent with their obligations under the 

18 Communications Act." Third Local Number Portability 

19 Order, 13 FCC: Rcd 11701, 11774 i 136 (1998). The 

Commission should therefore limit its focus with regard 

21 to this second cost recovery issue to the recovery of 

22 pooling costs by incumbent LECs. 

23 

24 Q. How can the I:::ormnission most efficient1y address this 

incumbent LEe Icost recovery issue? 
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1 

2 A. Sprint PCS recommends that the cost recovery issue be 

3 handled in a separate proceeding. 

4 C. Adoption of Pooling Administrative Guidelines 

S 

6 Q. What are pooli.ng administrative guidelines? 

7 

8 A. Number pooling requires the cooperation of the entire 

9 industry (including non-pooling carriers), and 

10 industry's pooling administrative guidelines are 

11 designed to establish the rules under which pooling is 

12 implemented. Pooling will be successful only if all 

13 industry participants play by the same rules. 

14 

1 S Q. What has the FI::::C said wi th respect to these guidelines? 

16 

17 A. The FCC has required the Commission to use the industry­

18 adopted pooling guidelines, but gave the Commission the 

19 flexibility to modify those guidelines so long as it 

20 "'consult [s] wi·th the industry prior to implementing such 

21 changes." Florida Delegation Order at 1: 13. 

22 

23 Q. What shou1d the Commission do with respect to industry's 

24 pooling guidelines? 

2S 
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1 A. The industry's pooling guidelines were developed (and 

2 are still being improved upon) using a deliberate, 

3 interactive process reflecting industry's best judgment 

4 based on its growing experience with pooling. Sprint 

5 PCS therefore recommends that the commission adopt the 

6 industry's guidelines in full. If anyone believes that 

7 the industry guidelines are deficient, that person 

8 should submit its counterproposals to the Industry 

9 Numbering Committee so they can be examined thoroughly. 

10 If, however, the Commission believes that the industry 

11 guidelines should be changed it any way, it should 

12 identify these proposed changes (perhaps in staff 

13 testimony) and provide industry an opportunity to submit 

14 comment. The Commission must remember that any pooling 

1 5 guidelines that it may adopt will be interim only. See 

16 Florida Delegcltion Order at CJ 21 ("Whatever decisions 

17 this [FCC] reaches with regard to thousands-block 

18 pooling administration and guidelines will supersede 

19 whatever syste!ms the Florida Commission puts in place 

20 prior to the enactment of those [FCC] rules."). 

21 D. selection of First Area to Implement Pooling 

22 

23 Q. Is 1.t not important for the Comrni.ss1.on to determine 

24 where poo11.ng shou1d be imp1emented? 

25 
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1 A. Yes, but the FCC has imposed some limits on the 

2 Commission's authority to make this decision. First, 

3 the commission may implement pooling in only one 

4 Metropolitan Statistical Area ("MSA" ) at a time. 

5 Florida Delegation Order at <[ 18. In this regard, the 

6 FCC has recommended that the Commission implement 

7 pooling in the area where pooling can achieve its 

8 maximum benefits (e.g., areas where multiple LNP-capable 

9 carriers exist). Id. at <[ 20. In addition, the FCC 

10 "direct [ed] the Florida Commission to ensure that an 

11 adequate transition time is provided to carriers to 

12 implement pooling in their switches and administrative 

1 3 systems." Id. at <[ 16. 

14 

15 Q. What MBA should the Commission select as the area where 

16 to introduce pooling in the state of Florida? 

17 

18 A. There are several candidates. However, the issue is 

19 sufficiently important that Sprint PCS recommends that 

20 the Commission request pUblic comment on this issue. 

21 Ideally, the commission will have selected a pooling 

22 administrator by this time so it can also have the 

23 benefi ts of its views based on its valuable experience 

24 elsewhere. 
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1 

2 Q. What about impl.amentation of pool.ing in additional. MSAs? 

3 

4 A. Having an overall game plan is important, but Sprint PCS 

5 believes that the commission should focus its early 

6 effort on selecting the first MSA. Sprint PCS 

7 recommends that the commission refer the issue of 

8 pooling in a.ddi tional MSAs to industry which, in 

9 conjunction with the pooling administrator, would submit 

10 a report and, if possible, recommendations to the 

1 1 Commission. 

12 

13 Q. 00 the pool.ing activities in other states have any 

14 rel.evance to Florida? 

15 

16 A. Yes, particularly in the next year or so. Most carriers 

17 have regional (multi-state) or even national networks. 

18 For example, Sprint PCS currently stores all ported and 

19 pooled information across the country in LNP databases 

20 located in Tennessee. Thus, the decisions by the 

21 California and New York commissions to implement pooling 

22 could very well impact Sprint PCS' ability to support 

23 pooling in Florida. Likewise, a pooling decision by 

24 this Commission would very well affect Sprint PCS' 
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1 ability to support pooling in other states. other 

2 carriers face a similar challenge. 

3 

4 Fortunately, the impact state pooling decisions will 

5 have on other states should be less of concern in a year 

6 or so. As I discuss more fully below, industry is 

7 developing an efficient pooling architecture and 

8 administrative system, known as NPAC Release 3.0, that 

9 will enable carriers to realize capacity savings up to 

10 99.9%. NPAC Release 3.0 should be available for general 

1 1 use beginning in January 2001. Once this new software 

12 release becomes available, there should be much less 

13 concern about one state negatively impacting service in 

14 another state. 

1 5 E. Pooling start Date 

16 

17 Q. Is it not important for the Conmission to establish a 

18 start date for pooling once an area has been selected? 

19 

20 A. Yes. Howeve:I:', industry must perform numerous tasks 

21 before pooling can begin. Under industry's pooling 

22 guidelines, dates for these various preparatory tasks 

23 are established at the first pooling implementation 

24 meeting. Sprint PCS recommends that the Commission not 

25 establish a firm start date until industry and the 
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1 pooling administrator have had an opportunity to conduct 

2 this first implementation meeting and establish 

3 tentative dates for the various preparatory tasks that 

4 must be performed. If the Commission later finds that 

the dates that industry has established are 

6 unreasonable, it can then adjust the dates accordingly. 

7 

8 Q. Would it not be helpful for the Conmi.ssion to at least 

9 establish a pr4Etliminary target date? 

1 1 A. Sprint PCS recommends that the Commission establish a 

12 target date after January, 1, 2001. 

13 

14 Q. Bow did Sprint PCS arrive at this proposed start date? 

16 A. Industry has developed technical specifications for the 

17 efficient implementation of number pooling that will be 

18 contained in Number Portability Administration Center 

19 ("'NPAC" ) Release 3.0 ( ... R3. 0" ) . Lockheed Martin is 

currently developing the software to implement R3.0 and 

21 is under contract to make preliminary versions of R3. 0 

22 available to carriers by July 1, 2000. However, 

23 industry will thereafter need time to test this new 

24 program. 
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The North American Numbering Council ("'NANC" ) Local 

Number Portability Administration ("'LNPA" ) Working 

Group, consisting of industry and vendor 

representatives, has established two phased approach to 

testing R3. O. The first testing date, scheduled to 

begin on April 17, 2000, is for the Service Order 

Administration ("'SON') and Local Service Management 

Systems ("'LSMS" ) vendors to test their respective 

platforms. This test will use simulators to emulate the 

interface requirements of the Number Portability 

Administration Center ("'NPAC") using R3. O. 

The second phase of R3.0 testing will follow completion 

of the SOA and LSMS vendor tests, although it is hoped 

that this second phase test can begin on July 3, 2000, 

immediately after the R3. 0 developer (Lockheed Martin) 

makes R3.0 available for testing. It is estimated that 

this second phase of testing will take four to six 

months in a semi-live network. Any deficiencies or bugs 

discovered during either test will have to be resolved 

to pass final 1:esting requirements. 

The four-to-six months testing period estimate for this 

second R3. 0 test is based on industry's experience in 

testing earlier versions of the NPAC administrative 

system. The LNPA Working Group has specified certain 
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1 NPAC Functional Requirements for R3. 0, with about 600 

2 test cases that must be performed to verify the 

3 specified NPAC functionalities. By comparison, about 

4 200 test cases were required verify the interim Rl.4 

5 discussed below, and these more limited tests consumed 

6 two months. R3.0 is much more complex (and robust) than 

7 Rl.4. It is the largest change in network design since 

8 LNP. Adequate testing is critical to ensure proper call 

9 processing and routing. 

10 

11 Q. Why not begin pooling sometime during 20001 After all, 

12 industry is already pooling in Illinois. 

13 

14 A. It may be possible to commence pooling in Florida during 

1 5 the second half of 2000 - assuming the Commission timely 

16 addresses all six issues discussed in this testimony. 

17 However, implementation of pooling before R3 . 0 becomes 

18 generally available would increase substantially carrier 

19 implementation costs (costs that will invariably be 

20 passed on to consumers) and would increase substantially 

21 the risk to continued network reliability. Sprint PCS, 

22 for instance, would have to be sensitive to pooling 

23 trials being conducted in other states to ensure that 

24 adequate network capacity is available to support the 
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1 Florida trial. Many other carriers would face a similar 

2 situation. 

3 

4 If the Commission ordered industry to commence pooling 

during 2000, it would be required to utilize an interim 

6 network archit,ecture and administration, known as NPAC 

7 release 1.4 (~R1.4"). R1.4 is the version that has been 

8 used in the Illinois pooling trial, and unlike R3. 0, 

9 complies with only a small fraction of the national NPAC 

pooling standards. 

1 1 The principal difference between Rl.4 and R3.0 is that 

12 the latter will contain Efficient Data Representation 

13 (~EDR" ) . With R1.4, each pooled number is stored as a 

14 separate record in each carrier's number portability 

databases (or SCPs). with EDR/R3.0, carriers may 

16 instead store an entire thousands block as a single 

17 record. Thus, use of EDR/R3.0 will result in a capacity 

18 (and associatE~d cost) savings to carriers of up to 

19 99.9%. 

21 Several words about capacity are in order. First, the 

22 experience in Illinois suggests that carriers must be 

23 prepared to store far more records with respect to 

24 pooling than they currently store in connection with 

ported numbers - up to 10 times the number of records. 
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1 Second, because carriers generally use centralized 

2 (regional or national) network architectures to support 

3 services in multiple states, each carrier's network 

4 equipment must be capable of storing pooling records and 

5 processing call attempts for pooling arrangements in 

6 multiple states. Thus, while the number of 1,000 blocks 

7 that will liJkely be involved in the first Florida 

8 pooling trial may appear to this Commission to be 

9 relatively small, from a carrier's perspective its 

10 network must be capable of supporting all pooling (and 

11 LNP) arrangements in an entire region or, in the case of 

12 Sprint PCS, throughout the country. 

13 

14 Activating pooling before R3.0 becomes available 

1 5 substantially increases the risk of network reliability 

16 in two respects. First, every carrier (including non­

17 LNP-capable carriers) must have adequate capacity to 

18 support pooling (and LNP) throughout a region or the 

19 country as a whole - or calls to persons assigned pooled 

20 numbers will be blocked or misrouted. Second, with Rl.4 

21 carriers must "'upload" their donated blocks manually, 

22 one record at ':l time. Not only is this a time consuming 

23 process, but it invites conversion or translation 

24 errors, errors that will result in calls being 

25 misrouted. Once R3.0 becomes available, carriers can 
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1 upload a block of 1,000 numbers as a single block, 

2 virtually eliminating the risk of errors. Carriers will 

3 also experience increased costs if they must convert 

4 pooling records from a R1.4 environment to a R3.0 

environment - a set of transition costs they would not 

6 incur if pooling did not begin until R3.0 became 

7 available. 

8 

9 As one might expect, there is a strong interest in 

number poolingr throughout the nation. California and 

1 1 Massachusetts, which face extreme circumstances in 

12 several NPAs, have already ordered pooling for the Los 

13 Angeles and Boston areas respectively (although they 

14 have yet to set start dates). New York has also 

commenced proceedings to implement pooling, and Maine 

16 recently established a tentative start date of June 

17 2000. The point is that the activation of pooling in 

18 one state can (and almost certainly, will) impact a 

19 carrier's ability to implement pooling (landline LNP) in 

another state. 

21 

22 For the same reason that it is unwise to convert all 

23 areas in a sta~e to pooling at the same time, so too it 

24 is important that state commissions coordinate their 

respective start dates with each other - at least if 
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pooling is implemented before R3.0 becomes generally 

available. A phased introduction to pooling will help 

ensure that network reliability is not put at risk and 

that consumers and businesses assigned numbers from the 

pool will continue to receive all calls directed to 

them. Because of all the problems and costs associated 

with R1. 4, Sprint pes strongly recommends that pooling 

in Florida not: be activated until R3. 0 has been tested 

and becomes available. 

Q. 	 But is there not a numbering crisis in Florida that 

demands early implementation of pooling - regardless of 

added costs and even though early implementation could 

jeopardize the ability of Florida residents and 

businesses to receive calls? 

A. 	 There is a crisis in the 305 NPA. As of October 31, 

1999, there are only 16 NXX codes remaining. However, 

this NPA is in such extraordinary jeopardy that pooling 

and other conservation measures will not obviate the 

need for pron~t implementation of area code relief. 

(There is general industry consensus that pooling will 

result in minimal benefits if fewer than 100 NXX codes 

remain available.) Put another way, it is simply too 
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1 late for new conservation measures to save the 305 NPA 

2 from relief. It is important for the Commission to 

3 remember that it must make available timely numbering 

4 resources for all carriers. Thus, even if LNP-capable 

5 carriers participating in a 305 pool can meet their 

6 needs from uncontaminated l,OOOs blocks, there must 

7 still be a sufficient supply of whole NXX codes for non­

8 LNP carriers that cannot technically participate in the 

9 pool - and fo:r the pooling administrator when it needs 

10 to replenish the pool in one or more rate centers. 

1 1 

12 The situation in three of the other four area codes is 

13 serious, but not a crisis. Based on information NANPA 

14 recently furnished to Sprint PCS, the other four area 

15 codes that are the subject of this proceeding had the 

16 following number of NXX codes available as of October 

17 31, 1999: 

18 NPA 

19 561 

20 786 

21 904 

22 954 

23 

Available Codes 

211 

616 

181 

189 
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Given that there are a reasonable number of available 

codes in these other Florida NPAs, coupled with the fact 

that at least the largest Florida carriers have already 

implemented 1,000s-block management procedures (so as to 

maximize the number of blocks that can be contributed to 

the pool), Sprint PCS submits that the costs of 

implementing pooling prior to the availability of R3. 0 

(both dollar costs and risks to network reliability) far 

exceed the limited benefits that would be realized by 

implementing pooling in late 2000 as opposed to early 

2001. 

F. 	 Adoption of Backup Area Code Relief Plan 

Q. 	 Are there any other steps that the Commission must take 

before pooling can be introduced in the state of 

Florida? 

A. 	 Yes. The FCC has required that if pooling is 

implemented in any jeopardy NPA, "the Florida Commission 

must take all necessary steps to prepare an NPA relief 

plan that may be adopted by the Florida Commission in 

the event that numbering resources in the NPA at issue 

are in imminent danger of being exhausted": 

[W]e require only that the Florida Commission be 

prepared to implement a "back-up" NPA relief plan 

prior to the exhaustion of numbering resources in the 
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1 NPA at issue. Consumers should never be in the 

2 position of being unable to exercise their choice of 

3 carrier because that carrier does not have access to 

4 numbering resources. This criterion attempts to 

5 ensure that consumers continue to retain a choice of 

6 telecommunications providers in the event that the 

7 pooling trial or trials do not stave off the need for 

8 area code relief. Florida Delegation Order at i 14. 

9 

10 Issue 3: What should be the dialing pattern for 

1 1 local, toll, EAS, and ECS calls for the 305/786, 561, 

12 954, and 904 area codes? 

13 Q. What dia1ing plan should the Commission adopt for the 

14 four area codes that are the subject of this proceeding? 

15 

16 A. Sprint PCS will not comment on the dialing plans 

17 customers of landline carriers should use. The 

18 Commission has never addressed the dialing plans used by 

19 wireless carriers, and there is no reason for it to 

20 intervene in this issue now. The wireless market is 

21 competitive, and this competition will ensure that 

22 wireless carriers will provide dialing arrangements (so 

23 long as they are consistent with their technology) that 

24 consumers prefer. 
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Issue 4: What is the appropriate relief plan 

2 implementation schedule for the 305/786, 561, 

3 954, and 904 area codes? 

4 

5 Q. When should relief plans for the 305/786, 561, 954, and 

6 904 area codes be ~lemented? 

7 

8 A. This Commission's authority to adopt area code relief is 

9 authority that the FCC has delegated to it, and it is 

10 therefore important that the Commission act within the 

1 1 scope of its delegated authority. FCC Rule 52.9(a) (1) 

12 specifies that state regulators "shall 

13 entry[f]acilitate into the telecommunications 

14 marketplace by making telecommunications numbering 

15 resources available on an efficient, timely basis to 

16 telecommunications carriers" (emphasis added). In this 

17 regard, the FCC has declared that Florida 

18 Commission continues to bear the obligation of 

19 implementing area code relief when necessary, and we 

20 expect the Florida Commission to fulfill this obligation 

21 in a timely manner" : 

22 Under no circumstances should consumers be precluded 

23 from receiving telecommunications services of this 

24 choice from providers of their choice for a want of 
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1 numbering resources. Florida Delegation Order at i 

2 8. 

3 

4 See also id. at i 14 (~Consumers should never be in the 

5 position of being unable to exercise their choice of 

6 carrier because that carrier does not have access to 

7 numbering resources." ) . In addition, the FCC has 

8 cautioned that the Florida Commission must ~safeguard 

9 [non-pooling] carriers' access to numbering resources, 

10 while they lack the technical capability to participate 

1 1 in pooling": 

12 Wi thin NPAs that are subject to the pooling trial, 

13 non-LNP capable carriers shall have the same access 

14 to numbering resources after pooling is implemented 

1 5 that they had prior to implementation of a pooling 

16 regime, i.e., non-LNP capable carriers shall continue 

17 to be able to obtain full NXX codes. Florida 

18 Delegation Order at i 15. 

19 

20 It is thus imperative that a new area code be activated 

21 before the last NXX code in the existing area code is 

22 assigned. If area code relief is not activated until 

23 after NXX codes in the existing area code have 

24 exhausted, there would be the very real risk that 

25 carriers will be unable to obtain the numbers they need 
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1 and that as a result, consumers will be precluded from 

2 using the carrier of their choice. The experience in 

3 Illinois demonstrates that under the right plan, both 

4 pooling carriers and non-pooling carriers can have 

S timely and equitable access to numbering resources while 

6 ensuring that all carriers use scarce numbering 

7 resources as efficiently as possible. 

8 

9 Q. Should a relief plan be adopted and a new area code be 

10 activated before the last minute? 

11 

12 A. Yes. Carriers need time to implement any Commission 

13 area code relief decision. More importantly, though, 

14 consumers and businesses need time to adjust to the new 

1 S environment. The sooner the Commission announces its 

16 relief plan, the more time that will be generally 

17 available to €!ducate consumers and businesses about the 

18 new area code and for the public to adjust to the new 

19 environment. 

20 

21 Q. In implementing relief, does it make a difference 

22 whether the rel.ief pl.an involves a geographic split or 

23 an overlay? 

24 A. Yes. Experience has demonstrated that the public often 

2S needs more time to adjust to a geographic split compared 

57 



1 06 


1 to an overlay. In addition, overlay plans can be 

2 implemented sooner than geographic splits. There is 

3 growing evidence, including in Florida, that the public 

4 adjusts relatively quickly to the 10-digit dialing 

5 required by an overlay. For example, last year Colorado 

6 implemented an overlay in the Denver metropolitan area 

7 (303/720 NPAs) . The Colorado Commission was ~very 

8 concernedll with the impact that this new type of relief 

9 plan would have on consumers, and it accordingly ~manned 

10 the phones at an increased level for a week when the ten 

1 1 digi t dialing became mandatory. II Nevertheless, the 

12 Colorado Commission has reported that ~[a]dopting to ten 

13 digi t dialing. . has gone more smoothly than anyone 

14 could have predictedll 
: 

1 5 Weeks after implementation, the Commission had 

16 received only three phone calls from customers 

17 complaining or having problems . This 

18 [successful conversion] is in large part because of a 

19 strong customer education campaign that included 

20 radio, television and newspaper advertisements. 

21 Comments of the Colorado Public utilities Commission, 

22 CC Docket No. 99-200, at 12 i 21 (July 29, 1999). 

23 The situation in Colorado is by no means unique. See, 

24 e. g., Mark Hayward, Folks Give the Big Shrug to Area 

25 Code Changes, The Union Leader, at C2 (Aug. 11, 
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1999} (Houston's switch to la-digit dialing was a "'non­

issue" and has been met with a shrug because people 

understood the need for it. In Dallas, people now dial 

la-digits out of habit); Maria M. Perotin, Here's the 

Buzz: Phone Changes Looming, The Orlando Sentinel, at D1 

(June 24, 1999) (recognizing that 10-digit dialing 

eventually will be universal); Editorial, The Atlanta 

J., at 14A (July 17, 1999) (la-digit dialing is a small 

price to pay for avoiding the greater costs to 

businesses, the inconvenience of changing numbers and 

the benefits brought by the boom in telecommunications); 

Ken Schrad, vec Orders Overlay Area Code for Northern 

Virginia, News Release (Nov. 23, 1998) (10-digit overlay 

will not substantially alter existing dialing patterns 

within the 703 NPA since most Virginia customers making 

calls into Washington D.C. and Maryland exchanges 

already dial 10 digits) i Patrick Flanagan, Area Code 

Relief Equals lO-digit Dialing, Telecommunications, Vol. 

33, No.6, Pg. 16, 19 (June 1999) (Maryland overlay was a 

nonissue, in part because residents in the Washington 

D.C. area have~ long been used to making la-digit calls 

between the 202 area code and suburban Maryland) . 

In contrast, with a split, roughly half of the consumers 

and businesses in an area code are required to accept a 
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1 number change,. and they understandably need time to 

2 advise friends, family, and customers of their new 

3 number, to purchase new stationary, business cards, and 

4 the like, change advertising (including Yellow Pages), 

S and possibly re-program computers for internet and e­

6 mail access. Obviously, if a split is the preferred 

7 method of relief, it would be preferable to give the 

8 public six or eight months notice as opposed to only 

9 three or four months notice. Thus, the more quickly the 

10 Commission adopts a relief plan (split or overlay), the 

1 1 more time it will afford consumers and businesses to 

12 prepare for the plan's implementation. 

13 

14 Q. Are there other advantages of an overlay over a 

1 S geographic spl.it with regard to the implementation of 

16 area code relief? 

17 

18 A. Yes. Geographic splits require a rigid implementation 

19 schedule. Specifically, the activation date of a split 

20 must be published months in advance so the public knows 

21 precisely when the new telephone numbers and dialing 

22 arrangements will take effect. The weakness in this 

23 approach is that the new area code can be activated too 

24 soon (before it was necessary) or worse, too late - with 

2S the result that the existing area code has exhausted 
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1 completely with some carriers being deprived of 

2 obtaining the numbers they need to support their 

3 services. 

4 

5 There is must greater flexibility with regard to the 

6 implementation of an overlay. In Illinois, for example, 

7 the overlay relief plan is activated (i. e., lO-digit 

8 dialing becomes mandatory) when the number administrator 

9 (NANPA) assigns the last NXX code in the existing area 

10 code. With this arrangement, there is no issue over 

1 1 implementing relief too soon or too late. 

12 

13 Q. Does this conclude your testimony? 
14 
1 5 A. Yes. 

16 
(Transcript continues in sequence in Volume 2.) 

17 

18 
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